
Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth 
Leol 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Mercher, 17 Gorffennaf 2013  

 

Amser: 
09:00 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Polisi: Marc Wyn Jones 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8505 / 029 2089 8600 
pwyllgor.CCLll@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2 Ymchwiliad i’r rhwystrau i adeiladu cartrefi yng Nghymru - 
sesiwn dystiolaeth 4 (09.15 - 10.00) (Tudalennau 1 - 21)  

CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 1- Y Sefydliad Cynllunio Trefol Brenhinol yng Nghymru 

CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 2 – Sefydliad Brenhinol y Syrfewyr Siartredig  

 

Dr Roisin Willmott, Cyfarwyddwr Cenedlaethol y Sefydliad Cynllunio Trefol Brenhinol 

yng Nghymru  

David Morgan, Rheolwr Polisi, Sefydliad Brenhinol y Syrfewyr Siartredig Cymru  

3 Ymchwiliad i’r rhwystrau i adeiladu cartrefi yng Nghymru - 
sesiwn dystiolaeth 5 (10.00 - 10.40) (Tudalennau 22 - 28)  

Llywodraeth Cymru  

CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 3 

 

Carl Sargeant AC, y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio  

Francois Samuel, Pennaeth Adeiladu, Dyfodol Cynaliadwy 

Kath Palmer, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr Cartrefi a Lleoedd 
   

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Toriad - 10.50 - 11.00 

4 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar gyfer darpariaethau 
yn ymwneud ag adennill meddiant tai annedd (10.50 - 11.30) 
(Tudalennau 29 - 51)  

Llywodraeth Cymru  

CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 4 

 

Carl Sargeant AC, y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio 

Simon White - Rheolwr Prosiect, y Bil Rhentu Cartrefi  

Lynsey Edwards - Cyfreithiwr, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol   

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod (11.30)  

6 Dyfodol cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol yng Nghymru – trafod yr 
adroddiad drafft (11.30 - 11.55) (Tudalennau 52 - 68)  

CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur preifat 5  
  

7 Ymchwiliad i lefelau cyfranogiad mewn chwaraeon - trafod y prif 
faterion (11.55 - 12.10) (Tudalennau 69 - 85)  

CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur preifat 6 
  

8 Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor (12.10 - 12.25) (Tudalennau 86 - 92)  

CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur preifat 7 
  

9 Papurau i’w nodi   

 
Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Chwaraeon Cymru yn dilyn cyfarfod 19 Mehefin  
(Tudalennau 93 - 107) 

CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 8 
 

 
Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru yn dilyn y 
cyfarfod ar 27 Mehefin  (Tudalennau 108 - 134) 
CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 9 
 

 
Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Bethan Jenkins AC  (Tudalennau 135 - 136) 
CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 10 
 

 
Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Ann Jones AC  (Tudalen 137) 



CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 11 
 



Eitem 2

Tudalen 1

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



� 1 

 

 

National Assembly for Wales: Communities, Equality and Local Government 

Committee 

Inquiry into barriers to home building in Wales 

Evidence submitted by RTPI Cymru 

Background 

The Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI) is a membership organisation representing 

over 23,000 spatial planners; RTPI Cymru represents the interests of almost 1,100 

members in Wales. It exists to advance the science and art of town planning for the 

benefit of the public. 

RTPI Cymru welcomes the opportunity to submit views to this inquiry into the barriers to 

home building in Wales. 

Ensuring that housing is available in sufficient numbers, at a range of prices that can 

assure access for all but without creating a housing market that might crash and deter 

investment - as has happened in the US, Ireland and Spain for instance - is a tricky 

equation. Additionally, it is accepted that social and environmental considerations will 

impinge to help assure public acceptance of housing growth and its sustainability. 

Planning must take a long term view and plan for future needs for society as a whole. 

RTPI Cymru believes that the delivery of the right housing in the right place is an 

important role of the planning system. Although we would stress that the planning 

system can only partially help to achieve the housing challenge that Wales faces. 

Are development costs impeding and constraining the delivery of new homes in 

Wales? 

Viability 

Viability is a significant issue affecting development in the current economic market. This 

is restricting the ability of the planning system to deliver affordable housing through 

planning agreements, as viability is a material consideration for Local Planning 

Authorities (LPAs) to consider. 

During the current downturn in the housing market, developers who bought sites in more 

profitable times (and in some cases before national and local policies increased % 

affordable housing requirements) argue that they cannot afford to meet LPAs’ 

requirements for affordable housing along with other requirements through the planning 

system, and in many cases they are able to evidence this, in which case LPAs are 

forced to accept lower levels of affordable housing. It is not expected that this will 

change in the short or medium term and therefore, the ability to deliver affordable 

 

 

 

CELG(4)-23-13 : Paper 1

Tudalen 15



� 2 

housing through Section 106 (planning gain) agreements will be limited until the market 

improves substantially. 

Furthermore, housebuilders argue that landowners still have artificially high expectations 

of land values and if national and local policies continue to set high targets, land owners 

will 'sit on' their land until policies ease up. National housebuilders have also advised 

that if the Welsh Government continues to pursue the current direction of travel for 

affordable housing policy (alongside the push for sustainable homes and other quality 

standards) then they will stop developing in Wales and only work in England. 

A large percentage of the development cost remains the land value and the opportunity 

for land held by local authorities and Welsh Government to be released for development 

at no or minimal cost needs to be considered, although RTPI Cymru accepts that this is 

a reducing resource. There is a lot of land which people thought would obtain a value but 

this was in the good times when developers would build on most sites; in reality a large 

amount of this land has little or no value either in the short or long term. How to 

encourage or adjust people’s perception of the value of their land is a problem that 

needs to be overcome if appropriate land in private ownership is to be successfully 

brought forward in the short and medium term. 

Quality of Development 

RTPI Cymru would not advocate a relaxation of the Welsh Government’s sustainable 

buildings policy (set out in Planning Policy Wales, edition 5, section 4.12: Planning for 

Sustainable Buildings). The link between this and affordable housing need must be 

understood and the implications for occupants and fuel poverty and water security. The 

Welsh Government has responsibility for Building Regulations and this now provides the 

opportunity for this to shift from planning policy to the Building Regulations. 

It is essential that new houses, both affordable and market housing, are built to a 

standard which reduces future problems caused by poor quality, which is now faced in 

some of the existing housing stock. 

What are the ‘quick-wins’ that can be implemented by the Welsh Government to 

assist the whole homebuilding industry? 

RTPI Cymru believes that the various portfolios of the Welsh Government must work 

together to complement each other, and any policy or legislative proposals must 

complement each other and avoid any conflict.  

Delivering Affordable Housing 

There has been considerable national policy and guidance produced promoting 

affordable housing including the Welsh Government "Delivering Affordable Housing 

Using s106 Agreements" and this has been useful. However, there may be a need to 

promote this policy direction and mechanisms for delivery to those LPA officers who deal 

with planning applications; there may have been a focus on Planning Policy and Housing 

officers taking a lead on this. 

Tudalen 16



� 3 

RTPI Cymru does not believe that national guidance alone will be successful in 

delivering more affordable housing in Wales. The main hurdles that stand in the way are: 

the speed at which local policies are able to catch up with national policy; the political will 

at a local level to prioritise affordable housing; the economic viability and the ability for 

developer's to provide affordable housing; and the lack of social housing grant to cross-

subsidise affordable housing delivery. 

Up to date local planning policies are an essential element for the delivery of any LPA or 

Government policy. The majority of LPAs in Wales are now progressing their LDPs, with 

nine now adopted and a further five submitted for examination. Without strong local 

planning policies the shape of housing provision can only be marginally influenced. 

Consequently the type of housing built, for example family homes vs apartments, cannot 

be directed by LPAs in response to local housing need. 

In the mean time, most LPAs have up to date SPG or Delivery Statements and these set 

lower thresholds and a higher % of affordable housing schemes. However, because the 

housing market has been very quiet for the last four years, these policies have not been 

tested very thoroughly. 

Regardless of national or local policies, each planning application will be subjected to 

scrutiny by Planning Committee. Members serving on Planning Committees do not 

always prioritise affordable housing over other matters such as education, transport or 

community facilities. This is particularly relevant where development viability is an issue 

and the number of Section 106 obligations is reduced below the policy requirements. 

Housing supply 

LPAs in Wales follow TAN2 guidance to include specific policies and proposals in their 

Local Development Plans (LDPs) for housing and affordable housing. To do this, they 

work with their housing colleagues to assess demands via local housing market 

assessments and deliver housing requirements via the development management 

(planning application) process. It is important that affordable and market housing are 

considered together in any actions to increase housing supply, to achieve a balance in 

provision, meet local need and produce mixed tenure developments. Whilst the planning 

system is important it is not the only factor involved. 

Whilst not directly relating to house building, RTPI Cymru has previously made points 

about greater control of second and holiday homes to reduce pressures on the rural 

housing market and the need to bring empty properties back into use. These factors 

combined could address part of the housing need. 

 

Roisin Willmott 

National Director, RTPI Cymru 

roisin.willmott@rtpi.org.uk  

July 2013 

Tudalen 17



 

 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
 
CELG(4)-23-13 : Paper 2 
 
Inquiry into barriers to home building in Wales 
 
Response from : Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 

 

Wales Residential Policy Paper 

 

Foreword 

 

This paper has been produced to reflect the deepening of devolution in Wales that has the 

potential to take the Welsh residential market in a different direction.  Significant factors 

affecting the market such as policy decisions on Mortgage availability will continue to be 

heavily driven by decisions taken at a UK Level but with planned Wales specific legislation 

on Housing, Planning and Sustainability it was clear that a Wales specific paper was needed 

to complement and build on an earlier RICS RESI policy paper produced in England.  It is 

our hope that this paper will act as a guide and support to policy makers and decision 

makers as they move forward. 

 

Finance and Mortgage Availability 

 

Although this will be heavily influenced by actions taken by the UK Government moves by 

Welsh Government where possible to improve access to mortgages are to be very much 

welcomed.  The plan unveiled by Welsh Government in November 2012 for a mortgage 

guarantee scheme to provide up to 95% mortgages is something we particularly support. 

We would though suggest a banded structure that could allow for more homes to be 

supported by the scheme.  So rather than just requiring a % deposit from each buyer 

regardless of circumstances each case should be evaluated so that if a person can contribute 

say 7% equity and so on that they do so hopefully helping resources go further. 

 

We would also suggest Welsh Government consider the introduction of a guarantee scheme 

for builders and developers in Wales to help them obtain finance from banks and other 

institutions.  A further possible variation could be for welsh Government to support the 

Private Rented Sector by taking a head lease on Housing developments that could then be 

sublet in particular for Affordable Housing. In essence a residential version of the guarantee 

that Welsh Government gave to facilitate regeneration in Cardiff Bay. 

 

Tudalen 18



 

 

 

Welsh Government has already recognised the importance of the Private Rented Sector by 

proposing registration of all Private Rented Sector Landlords, and we would like to see 

Welsh Government continue this by carrying out studies on the viability of guarantees for 

Landlords over tenants.  

 

Investment 

 

RICS Wales feels Welsh Government could use the proposed new Planning Act for Wales to 

encourage build to let by adjusting s 106 agreements so Market rent is treated as affordable 

rent for a minimum of ten years.  This will increase site viability.  Requiring a proportion of 

homes to be affordable should provide protection in more expensive areas. 

 

We also recommend that Welsh Government seek the devolution of VAT in respect of new 

build and refurbishments.  In the interim we would like Welsh Government to strongly 

engage with the UK Government to lower VAT on house repairs.  This is especially 

important in Wales where the vast majority of the current Housing stock will still be with us 

in 50 years and where the proportion of Housing stock dating prior to 1919 is higher than 

the UK average. 

 

Tax 

 

Our policy on empty property rates remains the same as it did in the RICS Wales 2011 

Assembly Elections Manifesto.  In our view it acts as a disincentive to economic 

development.  We would also like to see an extension of property rate relief.  We feel that 

this would beneficial for mixed use schemes in Wales.  If a developer fears being hit by 

empty property rates on the commercial element of a scheme it is quite likely to affect their 

calculation on viability concerning any residential element.  It must be considered quite 

likely that whole schemes including any residential elements would potentially postponed 

and not just any commercial elements.  

 

Welsh Government has recently raised the idea of extra Council tax charges where 

residential property is left vacant for some time.  RICS Wales feels that while we understand 

the reasoning in principle it could have unforeseen consequences.  In particular we are 

concerned such a move could prompt some landlords to make properties entirely 

uninhabitable by removing roofs or walls to avoid the tax.  We feel that other measures 

should be considered first. 

 

Consumer Protection 

 

Tudalen 19



 

 

 

As noted the Welsh Government is planning registration of all private rented sector 

landlords.  RICS Wales supports this.  However we feel that if registration proceeds in the 

rented sector it should also apply to sales as well.  It would seem quite arbitrary for agents 

who might be active in both sales and lettings to be registered for one part of their business 

and not for the other.  It could also potentially allow a grey area that could potentially be 

seen as a loophole that a few could see as a competitive advantage over competitors.  

 

Land 

 

One consequence that maybe anticipated from the consolidation of Government Offices at 

all levels within Wales is the potential to use the process to boost the supply of Land for 

Housebuilders.  RICS Wales feels it is important that the amount of land being made 

available at all levels is known.  This will need consultation between Welsh Government, UK 

Government and Local Authorities.  RICS Wales would like to see a single list agreed that all 

levels of Government would add to when they proposed to proceed with property sales or 

non renewal of leases.  We would then like to see this list circulated to developers and other 

stakeholders on a regular basis.  Property could also potentially be sold at below Market 

rates in return for other benefits such as Business rates being paid quicker on land that 

might otherwise remain vacant for long periods. 

 

In terms of planning RICS Wales has consistently suggested using the planning system used 

to encourage conversion of excess retail into residential.  We would now like to see the 

same whenever possible where Government in Wales might be vacating excess office space. 

Often such offices are centrally located with strong public transport links which are a strong 

attraction to many looking for accommodation.  

 

Viability 

 

RICS Wales welcomes the development of a Planning Act specific to Wales as an 

opportunity to make Wales more attractive for House Building and broader economic 

development.  We would say though that a balance needs to be struck between the speed of 

moves towards a greener low carbon future with Wales leading the way and the 

geographical proximity of much of Wales to England as opposed say to Scotland.  Wales is in 

a different position to the other devolved regions in terms of relative potential differences 

between demands and standards being asked of Builders and developers in England as 

opposed to Wales.  There is though an opportunity to give Wales a greater attractiveness to 

other parts of the UK.  For instance allowing greater flexibility to developers in terms of 

making off site contributions for allowing developments to proceed in order to increase site 

viability and encourage quicker developments might be one way forward.  

 

Tudalen 20



 

 

 

In this vein RICS Wales would like to offer to engage with Welsh Government on RICS 

research into financial viability in planning to support policy makers. 

 

Construction 

 

We would recommend Welsh Government explore ways to support non traditional forms of 

Construction by supporting better education of lenders on valuation methods.  We feel that 

if better understanding were achieved of more energy efficiency in buildings this would 

over the long term do much to support the environmental aims of the Welsh Government. 

 

To this RICS has produced guidance for the valuation of new build properties on which we 

would be delighted to speak with Policy makers.  

 

Improving existing Housing Stock 

 

We would urge Welsh Government to ensure Local Authorities maintain consistent and 

publicly available data on a regular basis of Housing stock in their area particularly in 

relation to empty properties. 

 

We also support innovative Housing schemes such as at Ely Mill and if at all possible would 

recommend their expansion.  

 

Energy Efficiency 

 

RICS Wales would like to see the continuation and wherever possible expansion of Energy 

Efficiency schemes such as the Arbed program.  This has the benefit of contributing both to 

economic activity while advancing the Environmental goals of Welsh Government.  

 

RICS Wales strongly supports the goal of a low Carbon economy but urges Welsh 

Government to consider carefully the impact on other social goals particular in areas very 

close to the English border of significantly more advanced   requirements than in England. 

 

Affordable Housing 

 

There is no single solution to this but some of the options covered in this paper such as 

public land being made available at less than Market cost in return for other wider social 

benefits one of which could be requirements for greater levels of Social Housing could begin 

to make significant inroads into a key social goal. 

Tudalen 21



CELG(4)-23-13 – Papur 3 
 

Tystiolaeth Ysgrifenedig y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio 
 
Ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol i 
Rwystrau i Adeiladu Cartrefi yng Nghymru. 

 
Cyflwyniad 
 
Rwy'n ddiolchgar i'r Pwyllgor am y cyfle i ystyried y maes hwn.  Ar ôl i mi 
ymgymryd â'r portffolio hwn ym mis Mawrth buan iawn y deuthum i'r casgliad 
mai fy mhrif flaenoriaeth fel Gweinidog yw adeiladu cartrefi.  Rydym ar y 
trywydd cywir o ran cyflawni ein targed o ddarparu 7,500 o gartrefi 
fforddiadwy yn ystod y weinyddiaeth hon (ac ailddefnyddio 5,000 o gartrefi 
gwag), ond rwyf am wneud mwy.  Rwyf am ragori ar ein targed ar gyfer 
cartrefi fforddiadwy ond rwyf hefyd am i'r sector preifat adeiladu mwy o gartrefi.  
 
Rwyf am i hyn ddigwydd er mwyn diwallu'r angen cynyddol am dai, ond hefyd 
am fod buddsoddi mewn tai yn creu twf a swyddi, gall ddarparu gwaith sy'n 
helpu pobl i ddod allan o dlodi a gall liniaru effeithiau'r dreth ystafell wely pan 
fyddwn yn adeiladu cartrefi llai o faint.  Am yr holl resymau hyn mae'n rhaid i 
ni adeiladu mwy.  Mae'n rhaid galluogi a helpu'r sector preifat a'r sector 
cyhoeddus i chwarae rhan lawn.  
 
Yn ystod ychydig fisoedd cyntaf fy neiliadaeth rwyf wedi edrych yn ofalus ar y 
fframwaith rheoliadol, a'n polisi a'n cyllid, a byddaf yn cyhoeddi newidiadau i 
wella ein gallu i helpu datblygwyr i gynyddu nifer y tai newydd a adeiledir yng 
Nghymru.  Cyn hir byddaf mewn sefyllfa i gyhoeddi cyfres o benderfyniadau 
cychwynnol rwyf wedi gallu eu gwneud yn hyn o beth, y gwelliannau cyflym y 
mae'r Pwyllgor yn cyfeirio atynt.  
 
Beth yw'r materion? 
 
Ers amser maith mae datblygiadau tai newydd wedi methu â darparu'r nifer o 
dai yr amcangyfrifir bod eu hangen.  14,200 y flwyddyn yn ôl yr Adroddiad 
Ymchwil Gymdeithasol ‘Housing Need and Demand in Wales 2006 to 2026’ 
(Holmans a Monk 2010).  Cyrhaeddodd nifer y tai newydd a ddechreuwyd 
uchafbwynt o 10,199 y flwyddyn yn 2007-08, gostyngodd yn sydyn i 4,910 yn 
y flwyddyn ganlynol ac mae wedi ailgodi ychydig i 5,291 yn 2012-13.  Mae'r 
sefyllfa o ran nifer y tai a gwblhawyd ychydig yn llai eglur oherwydd yr amser 
y mae'n ei gymryd i baratoi ar gyfer datblygiadau.  Cyrhaeddodd nifer y tai a 
gwblhawyd uchafbwynt o 9,334 yn 2006-07.  Gostyngodd wedyn i isafbwynt o 
5,505 yn 2010-11 ac mae'r ffigur hwn hefyd wedi ailgodi ychydig i 5,464 yn 
2012-13.  Deëllir y rhesymau dros y gostyngiad hwn yn dda ac maent yn 
ymwneud yn bennaf â'r farchnad forgeisi, sef y ffactor allweddol sy'n pennu'r 
galw am dai.  
 
Er fy mod am ysgogi'r galw am dai, mae'n rhaid i ni fod yn ymwybodol o'r 
dystiolaeth economaidd sy'n dangos y gallai mynd ati i ysgogi galw yn unig 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 22



gael mwy o effaith ar brisiau tai nag ar gynyddu'r cyflenwad. I'r graddau hyn 
bydd ysgogi'r ochr gyflenwi hefyd yn bwysig. 
 
Ers i mi ymgymryd â'r portffolio hwn rwyf wedi ymgysylltu ar raddfa helaeth ag 
adeiladwyr a datblygwyr, fel sefydliadau unigol a thrwy eu cyrff masnach, y 
Ffederasiwn Adeiladwyr Cartrefi a Ffederasiwn y Meistr Adeiladwyr.  O'r holl 
broblemau y maent yn eu codi gyda mi y broblem fwyaf yw cael morgeisi a 
hoffent weld y Llywodraeth yn helpu unigolion i brynu, drwy sicrhau bod 
modelau gwarant morgais ac ecwiti a rennir ar gael yn eang. 
 
Mae'r materion eraill a godir gyda mi yn ymwneud yn bennaf â dichonoldeb 
cynlluniau.  Ceir nifer o ffactorau sy'n effeithio ar ddichonoldeb y mae pob un 
ohonynt yn dechrau gyda'r pris y gall y farchnad ei gynnal.  Yn ôl Mynegai 
Prisiau Tai'r Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol, roedd chwyddiant prisiau tai yng 
Nghymru yn y 12 mis hyd fis Ebrill 2013 yn 6.2%, sy'n llawer uwch na 
chyfartaledd y DU, sef 2.6%, ac yn llawer uwch na'r 12 mis hyd fis Mawrth a 
gofnododd gynnydd o 1.2%.  Pris cyfartalog tŷ yng Nghymru ym mis Ebrill 
oedd £162,078, sef y pedwerydd ffigur isaf o blith rhanbarthau'r DU (dim ond 
yng Ngogledd Iwerddon a Gogledd-ddwyrain a Gogledd-orllewin Lloegr roedd 
pris cyfartalog tŷ yn is).  Ni ellir bod yn hyderus bod y farchnad wedi dechrau 
ar gyfnod o dwf cyson. Yn wir, mae dadansoddiadau o'r farchnad yn 
amrywio'n fawr o ran y darlun a roddant o'r farchnad.  Fodd bynnag, mae'n 
werth bod yn glir y gall dichonoldeb cynlluniau newid yn sylweddol dros 
gyfnodau byr o amser. 
 
Mae pris tir, costau adeiladu a chost cyflawni rhwymedigaethau o dan a106 
yn effeithio ar ddichonoldeb hefyd.  Mae adeiladwyr wedi gwneud 
cyflwyniadau cyson i mi o ran y ddau bwynt olaf.  Rheoliadau adeiladu yw 
ymyriad allweddol y Llywodraeth mewn perthynas â chostau adeiladu ac mae 
ein hymgynghoriad diweddar ynghylch Rhan L a oedd â'r nod o leihau 
allyriadau carbon, wedi ennyn ymateb cryf gan adeiladwyr.  Felly hefyd y 
mater o systemau chwistrellu ar gyfer atal tân.  
 
Mae rhwymedigaethau o dan a106 yn deillio o'r system gynllunio ac maent yn 
drefniadadu defnyddiol i oresgyn rhwystrau a all, fel arall, atal caniatâd 
cynllunio rhag cael ei roi.  Gellir defnyddio cyfraniadau gan ddatblygwyr i 
helpu i ddiwallu anghenion lleol, gan gynnwys yr angen am dai fforddiadwy, 
neu i sicrhau manteision a fydd yn golygu bod datblygiadau yn fwy cynaliadwy. 
Agwedd arall ar gynllunio sydd wedi effeithio ar y gyfradd ddatblygu yw nifer y 
cynlluniau a fabwysiadwyd.  Mae mabwysiadu Cynlluniau Datblygu Lleol 
(CDLlau) yn hanfodol i ddarparu tai am eu bod yn sail i benderfyniadau 
rhesymegol a chyson ynghylch defnyddio a datblygu tir.  Felly, dylai cynllun a 
fabwysiadwyd roi sicrwydd i ddatblygwyr yr ymdrinnir â'u ceisiadau cynllunio 
mewn modd cyson, tryloyw ac effeithlon.  Mae naw CDLl wedi'u mabwysiadu 
a rhagwelir y bydd dros hanner yr awdurdodau cynllunio lleol yng Nghymru 
wedi'u cwmpasu gan CDLl erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn.  Os nad oes unrhyw 
gynllun wedi'i fabwysiadu ceir rhagdybiaeth o blaid cynigion sy'n cyd-fynd ag 
egwyddorion allweddol datblygu cynaliadwy a nodir ym Mholisi Cynllunio 
Cymru. 
 

Tudalen 23



Nodaf ddiddordeb y Pwyllgor yn y rôl y gall BBaChau ei chwarae o ran 
darparu tai.  Rwy'n awyddus i sicrhau y caiff anghenion penodol BBaChau eu 
diwallu ond bydd maint ein huchelgais yn dibynnu hefyd ar yr adeiladwyr a'r 
datblygwyr mawr yr amcangyfrifir eu bod yn ffurfio tua dwy ran o dair o'r 
farchnad yng Nghymru.  Er mwyn cydnabod y ffaith bod swyddi adeiladu tai ar 
y cyfan yn rhai lleol, rwyf am i'n safbwynt o ran polisi a chyllid weddu i'r ddau 
fath o ddatblygwr. 
 
Bu ein Rhaglen Grantiau Tai Cymdeithasol yn fodd i ni ddarparu tai 
cymdeithasol gyda chymdeithasau tai.  Fodd bynnag, nid yw awdurdodau lleol 
wedi chwarae unrhyw rôl sylweddol o ran datblygu tai eu hunain ers peth 
amser.  
 
Camau gweithredu i fynd i'r afael â'r materion hyn 
 
Yng ngoleuni'r materion a nodwyd uchod, rwyf yn cymryd camau mewn sawl 
maes i wella'r fframwaith polisi a chyllido er mwyn sicrhau y gall datblygiadau 
ddigwydd. 
 
Cymorth ariannol  
 
Rwy'n parhau i gefnogi'r rhaglen Grantiau Tai Cymdeithasol ac yn rhoi £75 
miliwn eleni ar gyfer tai fforddiadwy.  Mae hyn yn cynnwys £2 filiwn i ddarparu 
cartrefi i bersonél milwrol sy'n gadael y Lluoedd Arfog.   
 
Mae hefyd yn cynnwys £26 miliwn o'r gronfa Cyfalaf a Gedwir yn Ganolog 
sy'n cynnwys £20 miliwn ar gyfer “Rhaglen Eiddo Llai”, sydd â'r nod o 
ddarparu tua 350 o gartrefi newydd ar gyfer aelwydydd yr effeithir arnynt gan 
y Dreth Ystafell Wely a £6 miliwn ar gyfer Partneriaeth Tai Cymru a fydd yn 
darparu tua 260 o gartrefi newydd ar renti canolradd.   
 
Mae datblygu modelau cyllido arloesol newydd yn hanfodol i gyflawni ein 
polisi.  Mae Partneriaeth Tai Cymru wedi dangos y gellir datblygu a 
gweithredu modelau arloesol newydd yn llwyddiannus a bydd yn darparu 
cyfanswm o tua 900 o gartrefi ar renti canolradd erbyn mis Mawrth 2016.  
 
Rwyf hefyd yn neilltuo £4 miliwn y flwyddyn am 30 o flynyddoedd i gefnogi 
Grant Refeniw newydd a all gynhyrchu buddsoddiad o fwy na £100 miliwn a 
bydd yn ariannu'r gwaith o ddarparu mwy na 1,000 o gartrefi fforddiadwy dros 
gyfnod o ddwy flynedd a hanner. 
 
Mae cynllun Melin Trelái hefyd yn enghraifft o fodel tai arloesol sy'n cael ei 
ddatblygu a bydd yn defnyddio ein hasedau tir i ddatblygu mwy na 700 o 
gartrefi newydd yng Nghymru.  
 
ii) Gwarant morgais ac ecwiti a rennir. 
 
Bûm yn gweithio i ddatblygu cymorth i brynwyr sy'n ei chael hi'n anodd 
sicrhau morgeisi i'w galluogi i brynu tŷ.  Bydd y cymorth hwn yn ysgogi'r galw 

Tudalen 24



ac yn helpu i gynyddu'r cyflenwad. Rhan hanfodol o'r strategaeth hon yw 
lansio Cynllun Ecwiti a Rennir newydd:  Cymorth i Brynu Cymru. 
 
Caiff y gwaith o weinyddu'r cynllun o ddydd i ddydd ei reoli gan barti allanol, a 
byddwn yn cynnal proses caffael cystadleuol dros yr haf er mwyn paratoi ar 
gyfer y lansiad.  
 
Rydym yn gobeithio sefydlu cynllun gwarant morgais o dan NewBuy Cymru. 
Fodd bynnag, mae hyn yn dibynnu ar gydberthynas deiran rhwng y 
Llywodraeth, adeiladwyr a benthycwyr ac rydym yn ceisio sicrhau cyfranogiad 
pob parti mewn cynllun hyfyw. 
  
iii) Arian trafodion ariannol 
 
Rwyf wedi gofyn i'm swyddogion ystyried y posibilrwydd o ddefnyddio arian 
trafodion ariannol ac mae nifer o syniadau newydd yn cael eu datblygu, yn 
arbennig i helpu i wella eiddo a chynyddu'r cyflenwad o dai. 
 
iv) Benthyciadau i adeiladwyr  
 
Drwy Cyllid Cymru mae Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a 
Thrafnidiaeth wedi lansio Cronfa Datblygu Eiddo Cymru gwerth £10 miliwn, 
sy'n gwneud benthyciadau i gwmnïau adeiladu bach a chanolig yng Nghymru 
sy'n datblygu eiddo masnachol a phreswyl ar raddfa fach, ond nid ar hap. 
Crëwyd y Gronfa mewn ymateb i'r galw mawr o du cwmnïau adeiladu bach a 
chanolig na allant gael gafael ar gyllid gan ffynonellau traddodiadol.  Bydd y 
Gronfa yn gweithredu ar sail fasnachol a, thrwy ailgylchu elw o fuddsoddiadau, 
fel arfer o fewn 18-24 mis, bydd yn creu cronfa ‘fytholwyrdd’ a allai ddarparu 
hyd at £30m o gyllid dros bum mlynedd. Gallai hyn greu budd ychwanegol i 
economi Cymru gwerth tua £19m, gan greu hyd at 900 o swyddi uniongyrchol 
ac anuniongyrchol a diogelu tua 700 o swyddi. 
  
Yn ogystal ag adeiladu mwy o gartrefi, mae angen i ni wneud y defnydd gorau 
posibl o'r stoc bresennol drwy fynd i'r afael â phroblem eiddo gwag hirdymor 
sy'n wastraff o adnoddau.  Rydym yn mynd i'r afael â hyn drwy ein rhaglen 
Troi Tai'n Gartrefi sy'n llwyddiannus iawn, a gefnogir gan fuddsoddiad newydd 
gwerth cyfanswm o £20 miliwn. 
 
Rheoleiddio 
 
i) Rheoliadau Adeiladu 
 
Yn 2012 gwnaethom ymgynghori ynghylch cynlluniau i ddefnyddio Rhan L o'r 
rheoliadau adeiladu er mwyn lleihau allyriadau nwyon tŷ gwydr o eiddo 
newydd.  Mae mynd i'r afael â'r newid yn yr hinsawdd yn un o flaenoriaethau 
allweddol y Llywodraeth ond nododd yr ymgynghoriad y gallai fod effeithiau 
negyddol ac anfwriadol ar y farchnad eiddo a chyflogaeth.  O ganlyniad i'r 
gofyniad i ystyried datblygu cynaliadwy mae'n ofynnol i mi gydbwyso effeithiau 
tymor hwy fy mhenderfyniad o safbwynt economaidd a chymdeithasol yn 
ogystal ag amgylcheddol. Rwyf wedi bod yn gwrando ac rwyf wrthi'n ystyried 

Tudalen 25



goblygiadau'r effeithiau hyn gyda chyd-Weinidogion yn y Cabinet ac rwy'n 
bwriadu cyhoeddi safbwynt cytbwys a theg yn fuan. 
 
ii) Diogelwch Tân Domestig 
 
Fel cyn-ddiffoddwr tân diwydiannol rwy'n ymrwymedig iawn i weithredu Mesur 
Diogelwch Tân Domestig (Cymru) a basiwyd gan y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol 
ym mis Chwefror 2011.  Bydd gofyniad i osod systemau chwistrellu ar gyfer 
atal tân mewn eiddo preswyl newydd yn atal deiliaid tai a diffoddwyr tân rhag 
cael eu lladd a'u hanafu.  Fodd bynnag, tynnodd ein hymgynghoriad sylw at y 
goblygiadau ariannol i ddatblygwyr.  O gofio hynny, rwy'n ystyried y dull 
priodol o weithredu.  Bydd y dull gweithredu yn parhau i osod Cymru ar 
wahân fel arweinydd ym maes hyrwyddo diogelwch tân mewn cartrefi newydd, 
ni ddylai hynny newid, tra'n cydnabod yr amgylchiadau anodd y mae 
adeiladwyr tai yn gweithredu ynddynt ar hyn o bryd. 
 
iii) Cynlluniau Rheoli Gwastraff Safleoedd  
 
Daeth yr ymgynghoriad ynghylch Cynlluniau Rheoli Gwastraff Safleoedd i ben 
ar 25 Ebrill 2013.  Mae'r ymatebion i'r ymgynghoriad hwn wrthi'n cael eu 
dadansoddi.  Diben y cynlluniau yw annog cleientiaid a chontractwyr yn y 
sector Adeiladu a Dymchwel i gynllunio sut y gallant atal, lleihau ac ailgylchu 
eu gwastraff fel na chaiff ei anfon i safleoedd tirlenwi.  Bydd Cynlluniau Rheoli 
Gwastraff Safleoedd yn helpu i leihau gwastraff ac yn cyfrannu at leihau 
costau.  Fodd bynnag, rwyf yn cydnabod y bydd y gwaith o lunio cynlluniau o 
bosibl yn golygu cost ychwanegol i lawer o fusnesau, yn enwedig BBaChau, 
cyn y sicrheir unrhyw arbedion cost.   
 
Mae fy nghyd-Weinidog, y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol a Bwyd hefyd yn 
cydnabod bod yn rhaid i unrhyw newidiadau rheoliadol ddiwallu anghenion 
busnesau.  Rwyf wedi cytuno gyda'r Gweinidog y byddwn, wrth ddatblygu 
Cynlluniau Rheoli Gwastraff Safleoedd, yn ystyried effaith gronnol y gwahanol 
reoliadau er mwyn lleihau unrhyw feichiau ar y diwydiant cymaint â phosibl.  
 
Cynllunio  
 
Mae cynllunio yn chwarae rôl hanfodol nid yn unig o ran helpu i ddarparu 
cartrefi newydd, ond hefyd o ran adfywio'r economi a hybu lles cymunedol, yn 
ogystal â diogelu a gwella'r amgylchedd, sy'n elfennau allweddol o'n 
hymrwymiad i ddatblygu cynaliadwy.  Mae pwysigrwydd cynllunio wedi'i 
gadarnhau dro ar ôl tro gan y trafodaethau rwyf wedi'u cael gyda rhanddeiliaid 
allweddol yn y sector cyhoeddus, y sector preifat a'r trydydd sector.  Rwyf am 
weld system gynllunio sy'n cydbwyso ystyriaethau croes mewn modd 
effeithlon ac effeithiol, nad yw'n rhwystro datblygiadau o ansawdd da ac sy'n 
hyrwyddo twf a swyddi cynaliadwy.  
 
Credaf fod angen i ni hefyd adolygu'r polisïau uchelgeisiol ac eang eu 
cwmpas y bu disgwyl i'r system gynllunio eu cyflawni hyd yma - agenda 
“planning plus”.  Rwyf am ganolbwyntio ar yr hanfodion, gan ddefnyddio 
systemau cyflawni cynllunio priodol, a all newid dros amser.   

Tudalen 26



 
i) Perfformiad awdurdodau lleol  
 
Mae gwella perfformiad awdurdodau cynllunio lleol yn allweddol i gyflawni 
gwaith cynllunio.  Rwyf wedi trafod fframwaith perfformiad â hwy, sy'n ymdrin 
â pherfformiad ansoddol a meintiol.  Rwyf wedi datgan yn glir bod yn rhaid 
iddynt feddu ar gynllun datblygu lleol cyfredol a fabwysiadwyd.  Rwy'n 
ymwybodol iawn o'r problemau a'r heriau sy'n wynebu awdurdodau cynllunio 
lleol ond rwy'n siomedig nad oes digon o gynnydd wedi'i wneud o ran llunio'r 
cynlluniau hyn.  Os credaf fod angen i ni ddeddfu er mwyn sicrhau 
gwelliannau, byddaf yn gwneud hynny drwy'r Bil Diwygio Cynllunio, y byddaf 
yn ei gyhoeddi yn ddiweddarach eleni, ynghyd â Phapur Ymgynghori.  
 
ii) Datblygu a ganiateir  
 
Fel rhan o'm hagenda “canolbwyntio ar hanfodion cynllunio”, ceir deddfwriaeth 
newydd, sef Gorchymyn Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref (Datblygu Cyffredinol a 
Ganiateir) (Diwygio) Cymru 2013, sydd â'r nod o leihau'r angen i ddeiliaid tai 
gael caniatâd cynllunio ar gyfer datblygiadau penodol.  Caiff y rheoliadau 
newydd eu gosod gerbron y mis hwn ac, yn amodol ar gymeradwyaeth y 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol, deuant i rym ddiwedd mis Medi.  Bwriedir i'r cyfnod o 
dri mis a bennwyd ar gyfer cyflwyno'r rheoliadau sicrhau bod awdurdodau 
cynllunio, asiantau a'r sector adeiladu yn cael amser i baratoi ar gyfer y 
newidiadau.  Mae'r gorchymyn yn adlewyrchu'r penderfyniad i newid o 
drothwy cynnydd canrannol i asesiad sy'n seiliedig ar effaith a ddylai ddiogelu 
amwynder trigolion cyfagos.         
 
Prosiect arall sy'n mynd rhagddo i wella'r broses o wneud cais cynllunio yw 
rheoliadau newydd arfaethedig i'w gwneud yn bosibl i wneud mân 
ddiwygiadau i ganiatadau cynllunio a ddylai helpu i weithredu cynlluniau 
cymeradwy.  Dylai'r newidiadau hyn fod o fudd i bawb sy'n defnyddio'r broses 
o wneud cais cynllunio, gan gynnwys y sector adeiladu.  
 
ii) Gwella prosesau 
 
Mae fy swyddogion hefyd yn edrych yn ehangach ar y rhwystrau i ddarparu tai 
er mwyn gweld pa newidiadau ychwanegol sydd eu hangen.  Mae 
ymgynghorwyr wedi'u comisiynu i adolygu'r broses o wneud cais cynllunio, a 
chaiff y gwaith hwnnw ei lywio gan astudiaethau achos ledled Cymru. 
Disgwyliaf i'r adroddiad hwn gael ei gyflwyno yn yr hydref.  At hynny, mae 
gwaith ymchwil i weithrediad pwyllgorau cynllunio bron â'i gwblhau.  
 
iii) Pwysigrwydd cynlluniau  
 
Mae'n rhaid i awdurdodau cynllunio lleol feddu ar gynllun datblygu lleol 
cyfredol a fabwysiadwyd.  Rwy'n ymwybodol iawn o'r problemau a'r heriau 
sy'n wynebu awdurdodau cynllunio lleol ond rwy'n siomedig nad oes digon o 
gynnydd wedi'i wneud o ran llunio'r cynlluniau hyn.  Os credaf fod angen i ni 
ddeddfu er mwyn sicrhau gwelliannau, byddaf yn gwneud hynny drwy'r Bil 

Tudalen 27



Diwygio Cynllunio, y byddaf yn cyhoeddi ymgynghoriad ar ei gyfer ym mis 
Rhagfyr 2013.  
 
Yn y cyfamser rwy'n parhau i bwyso ar awdurdodau i fabwysiadu cynlluniau'n 
gyflymach ac rwyf eisoes wedi gweithredu drwy ei gwneud yn ofynnol i 
awdurdodau lleol gynnal a diweddaru eu Hasesiadau o'r Farchnad Dai Leol o 
fewn dwy flynedd o 1 Ebrill 2014.  Credaf y bydd hyn yn atgyfnerthu'r sail 
dystiolaeth sydd wrth wraidd swyddogaeth tai strategol awdurdodau lleol sy'n 
cefnogi'r strategaeth dai, Cynlluniau Datblygu Lleol a swyddogaethau 
cysylltiedig. 
 
Camau i'w cymryd  
 
i) Y Tasglu Cyflenwad Tai 
 
Er bod y camau hyn yn bwysig, rwy'n cydnabod mai megis dechrau rydym ar 
y broses o lunio fframwaith polisi a chyllido cyflawn, a all helpu i gynyddu'r 
cyflenwad o dai ym mhob sector.  I'r perwyl hwn rwyf wedi gofyn i Robin 
Staines, y Cyfarwyddwr Tai yng Nghyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerfyrddin i 
arwain tasglu bach i ystyried y rhwystrau i ddatblygu a chynnig cyngor i mi ar 
y fframwaith hwnnw. 
 
Bydd y tasglu yn canolbwyntio ar dri maes, sef: y potensial sydd i awdurdodau 
lleol adeiladu cartrefi drwy amrywiol ddulliau, datblygiadau tai'r farchnad 
agored a datblygiadau tai fforddiadwy, gan adlewyrchu fy agenda.  Rwy'n 
gobeithio gwneud cynnydd cyflym a bydd y grŵp yn cyflwyno adroddiadau 
wrth iddo ddatblygu ei syniadaeth a'i adroddiad terfynol ym mis Chwefror 
2014.  
 
ii) Cyflenwad tir 
 
Mae argaeledd tir cyhoeddus i'w ddatblygu yn un o'r ymyriadau allweddol y 
gall Llywodraeth Cymru ei wneud yn yr hinsawdd gwariant cyhoeddus sydd 
ohoni.  I'r perwyl hwn rwyf wedi ychwanegu at yr adnoddau sydd ar gael i mi 
er mwyn nodi safleoedd posibl a'u paratoi i'w datblygu.  Rwyf wrthi'n trafod â 
Gweinidogion eraill sut i wneud y defnydd gorau o Dir y Llywodraeth.    
 

Tudalen 28



Eitem 4

Tudalen 29

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



Tudalen 37

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



CELG(4)-23-13 - Paper 4 
 
LEGISLATIVE CONSENT MEMORANDUM 
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING BILL 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE RECOVERY OF POSSESSION OF 
DWELLING HOUSES 
 
1. This Legislative Consent Memorandum is laid under Standing Order (“SO”) 29.2. 
SO 29 prescribes that a Legislative Consent Memorandum must be laid, and a 
Legislative Consent Motion may be tabled, before the National Assembly for Wales if 
a UK Parliamentary Bill makes provision in relation to Wales for a purpose that falls 
within, or modifies, the legislative competence of the National Assembly. 
 
2. The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Bill (the “Bill”) was introduced in the 
House of Commons on 9 May 2013. The Bill can be found at: 
 
Bill Documents – Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Bill 2013-14 – 
UK Parliament Website 
 
Summary of the Bill and its Policy Objectives 
 
3. The Bill is sponsored by the Home Office.  The UK Government’s policy objectives 
for the Bill are to create new and simpler powers to tackle antisocial behaviour, 
encourage responsible dog ownership, tackle the use of illegal firearms by gangs 
and organised crime groups, make forced marriage illegal and improve professional 
standards of the police. 
 
4. The Bill makes provision for condensing the current 19 orders to 6 new orders to 
deal with anti-social behaviour; provides victims of anti-social behaviour with the 
ability to ensure action is taken; allows for the mandatory repossession of secure 
tenancies where the tenant is in breach of one of the new orders; amends the 
Dangerous Dogs Act 1991 to extend its provisions to private property; increases the 
maximum penalty for the importation and exportation of firearms; creates a new 
offence of possession for sale or transfer of firearms; makes forced marriage illegal; 
creates a new College of Policing, and also makes provisions relating to the financial 
controls on chief constables and extending the powers and remit of the Independent 
Police Complaints Commission. 
 
Provisions for which consent is sought 
 
Part 5 – Recovery of Possession of Dwelling Houses: Anti-social behaviour 
grounds 
 
5. The provisions in Part 5 of the Bill for which consent is sought relate to recovery of 
possession of dwelling-houses that are the subject of either a secure or assured 
tenancy on anti-social behaviour grounds. 
 
Secure Tenancies 
 

Tudalen 48



6. Clause 86 of the Bill introduces a new absolute ground for possession of a 
dwelling that is the subject of a secure tenancy.  In general most secure tenants are 
local authority tenants although other social landlords (Registered Social Landlords 
or “RSLs”) also have secure tenants. 
 
7. Subsection (1) of Clause 86 inserts a new section 84A into the Housing Act 1985 
(“the 1985 Act”) which provides that the court will be required to grant possession if 
any one of the five conditions in new section 84A is met, the notice requirements 
have been met and where relevant, the review procedures have been followed.  New 
section 84A(1) clarifies that this is subject to any available defence based upon the 
tenant’s Convention rights within the meaning of the Human Rights Act 1998. 
 
8. The conditions are that the tenant, a member of the tenant’s household or a 
person visiting the property has been: 

• convicted of a serious offence (which is one of the offences set out in new 
Schedule 2A to the 1985 Act as inserted by subsection 2 of Clause 86 and Schedule 
3 to the Bill). 

• found by a court to have breached an injunction to prevent nuisance and 
annoyance; or 

• convicted for breach of a criminal behaviour order. 
The offence or anti social conduct must have been committed in the dwelling house 
or in the locality of the dwelling house, affected a person with a right to live in the 
locality of the dwelling house or affected the landlord or a person connected with the 
landlord’s housing management functions.  Other conditions are that: 

• the tenant’s property has been the subject of a closure order where the total period 
of closure exceeds 48 hours; or 

• the tenant, a member of the tenant’s household or a person visiting the property 
has been convicted for breach of a notice or order to abate noise in relation to the 
tenant’s property under the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
9 New section 84A confers power on the Welsh Ministers to amend by order new 
Schedule 2A to the 1985 Act by adding indictable offences or removing an offence. 
Any such order would be subject to negative Assembly procedure. 
 
10. Clause 87 inserts a new section 83ZA into the 1985 Act which sets out the notice 
requirements where a landlord of a secure tenant wishes to seek possession for anti 
social behaviour on the absolute ground because they believe one or more of the 
conditions in new section 84A of the 1985 Act have been met.  The new section 
prescribes the minimum notice that the landlord must give to a tenant with a periodic 
tenancy and the time limits in which possession proceedings must begin.  It also sets 
out time limits within which a notice must be served following a conviction, finding of 
the court or closure of premises or the conclusion of any appeal process. 
 
11. Clause 88 inserts new section 85ZA into the 1985 Act and provides secure 
tenants of local housing authorities with a right to request a review of the landlord’s 
decision to seek possession using the absolute ground.  The landlord must review 
the decision if requested to do so by the tenant.  New section 85ZA confers power 
upon the Welsh Ministers to make regulations setting out the procedure for carrying 
out such reviews.  These regulations would be subject to negative Assembly 
procedure. 

Tudalen 49



Assured Tenancies 
 
12. Clause 89 amends Schedule 2 to the Housing Act 1988 (“the 1988 Act”) so as to 
introduce a new absolute ground for possession (Ground 7A) in respect of assured 
tenants i.e. those tenants who rent property from Registered Social Landlords 
(RSLs).  The grounds for possession are the same as those for secure tenants in 
clause 86 and are subject to any available defence based upon the tenant’s 
Convention rights. 
Subsection(2) of Clause 89 amends section 8 of the 1988 Act to modify the notice 
requirements for possession for assured tenancies to take account of the new 
Ground 7A. It sets the time limits within which notices under Ground 7A must be 
served. 
 
13. Clause 90 amends the existing discretionary grounds for possession for anti-
social behaviour (Ground 2 in Schedule 2 to the 1985 Act and Ground 14 in 
Schedule 2 to the 1988 Act) so that they also apply where anti-social behaviour 
occurs outside the locality of the dwelling-house. The amendments allow a landlord 
to apply for possession of a secure or assured tenant’s property where the tenant or 
a person living in or visiting the tenant’s property has been guilty of conduct that is 
likely to cause nuisance or annoyance to the landlord, or a person employed in 
connection with the exercise of the landlord’s housing management functions. 
 
14. Clause 92 amends section 138 of the 1985 Act so that, as with the existing 
ground for possession for anti social behaviour, if proceedings on the absolute 
ground for anti social behaviour are pending before any court, the landlord has no 
duty to convey the freehold or grant a lease to a tenant who has applied to exercise 
the right to buy.  The amendments made by this clause will also mean that a landlord 
may also refuse to allow a tenant to take part in mutual exchange under the 1985 Act 
(which applies to secure tenants) or a transfer of tenancy under the Localism Act 
2011(which applies to certain secure and assured tenants).  Landlords may already 
withhold consent where possession is being sought on the discretionary ground for 
anti social behaviour. 
 
15. Clause 137(3) provides power to the Welsh Ministers to make any consequential 
amendments to provisions contained in or made under any Act or any Measure or 
Act of the National Assembly for Wales.  Consequential amendments can only be 
made in relation to those clauses over which the Assembly has legislative 
competence.  Such amendments must be made by Order which is subject to 
affirmative Assembly procedure. 
 
16. Clause 141 provides power to the Welsh Ministers to commence by Order those 
clauses over which the Assembly has legislative competence on whatever day or 
days they appoint.  The Welsh Ministers may make any saving, transitional or 
transitory provisions they consider appropriate in relation to the coming into force of 
those clauses.  This Order would not be subject to Assembly procedure. 
 
17 It is the view of the Welsh Government that the provisions referred to in 
paragraphs 5 to 16 fall within the National Assembly’s legislative competence as set 
out in Subject 11 (Housing) of Schedule 7 to the Government of Wales Act 2006. 
 

Tudalen 50



Advantages of utilising this Bill rather than Assembly legislation 
 
18 Using this UK Bill will ensure that the powers are available on a consistent basis 
across Wales and England simultaneously.  Consultation results demonstrated that 
Welsh stakeholders were keen to have the same tools to deal with anti-social 
behaviour as England and this is the fastest route at present to make them available 
to more effectively tackle anti-social behaviour. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
19 There are no anticipated financial implications for the Welsh Government of the 
relevant provisions of this Bill which cannot be absorbed as part of existing 
obligations. 
 
20 There may be additional duties at a local authority level and housing association 
level when social landlords choose to exercise the powers. 
 
Carl Sargeant AM 
Minister for Housing and Regeneration 

May 2013 

 

Tudalen 51



Eitem 6

Tudalen 52

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



Eitem 7

Tudalen 69

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



Eitem 8

Tudalen 86

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
 
CELG(4)-23-13 – Paper 8 – Paper to Note 
 
Additional information from Sport Wales following the meeting on 19 
June 2013 
 

In terms of the development of hockey, I’ve attached a presentation and 
briefing note from Hockey Wales on 4689, which provide the overview of the 
programme.  I know that the questioning was in specific reference to hockey 
development in Cardiff.  I’ve spoken to colleagues in Hockey Wales and the 
focus has been on establishing a new junior hockey club called Canton and 
Riverside, currently based out of Sophia Gardens.  They have worked closely 
with Severn Road Primary School with a keen teacher and supported him with 
subsidising some pitch time to help keep costs low whilst the club develops 
and grows.  The club has also been promoted in the feeder primary schools 
in the surrounding areas.  
 
They are currently running a 4689 fun centre on a Thursday evening for 7 – 
11 year olds and soon to start a Back2Hockey programme run out of CISS in 
Leckwith.  Working with Sport Cardiff to promote this to the feeder primary 
schools across the Canton, Leckwith, and Riverside areas.   
 
A 4689 Leadership award has also been run out of the Sport Wales National 
Centre, with 9 Cardiff primary schools represented.  
 
All Cardiff schools were invited to take part in our 4689 Cardiff Festival 
Competition in March, 5 primary schools entered. Hockey Wales are planning 
on working closely with Sport Cardiff this academic year to expand hockey 
development across the city in conjunction with our clubs requirements. 

Eitem 9a

Tudalen 93



 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
 
CELG(4)-23-13 - Paper 8 – Paper to note 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4689 – The New Route into Hockey 

 

As part of VISION 2020, Hockey Wales has set out the ambitious targets of:  

 

• Ensuring every young person of school age enjoys a quality hockey experience 

• Providing modern, exciting and new offers of the game for young people and adults  

 

Over the last 9 months, Hockey Wales has been developing a new resource for clubs and schools 

which will provide young people with a safe, fun, exciting new game format that is more suitable for 

their age and ability; ultimately resulting in more children wanting to pick up a stick, and keep hold 

of it!  From September 2012, 4689 will be the way to play hockey! 

 

Why are we changing? 

 

Research shows by reducing from 8v8 to 4v41: 

 

                                                 
1 Soccer Coaching International (No. 17 October/November 2006)  “Small is Best – Why the 4v4 Format is the 
Answer for Youth Football” 

· Number of passes up 135% 

· Scoring attempts up 260% 

· Number of goals scored up 500% 

· Number of 1v1 encounters up 225% 

· Number of dribbling skills up 280% 

 

Children have said about hockey: 

 

· Like to have the ball and score goals 

· Current games are too long 

· Too much running 

· Too many rules - too strict 

 

How do we know the change is right? 

 

We have consulted with children, teachers, coaches, students, education specialists, Sport Wales 

and other NGBs who have gone through similar changes.  We have trialled the new approach 

through the new Dragon Sport Multi Skills pilots, as well as other Dragon Sport and 5x60 sessions. 

 

So what is 4689? 

4689 is a progressive hockey format, starting with 4v4, moving to 6v6, 8v8 and finally 9v9, 

where the size of the playing area and number in a team gradually increases as the children’s ability 

Tudalen 94



 

 

improves.  The reverse of this sheet gives an overview of the transition between each of the stages.  

Best of all, you won’t need any special equipment or playing areas, 4689 is designed to be as 

flexible and accessible as possible.  

 

How does this fit into current Active Young People programmes? 

 

4689 follows the Play to Learn and Dragon Sport ethos of ability not age, with our supporting 

resource laid out in a similar way to these existing programmes.  Teachers, coaches and leaders will 

be able to attend a 3 hour orientation workshop, following which they will be given access to a web-

based resource, where they can download the 30 activity cards and a reference manual of individual 

skills.  The skills are broken down into 4 stages, beginner, intermediate, advanced and goalkeeping, 

and are supported by video clips and animated photos to bring it all to life.  There will also be the 

opportunity to purchase hard copies of the resource.   

 

The resource will support the development of young umpires and leaders – encouraging young 

people to take part in all aspects of hockey life and contributing to meeting the requirements of the 

National Curriculum and the Skills Framework.   

 

4689 will also be available as a recreational format of hockey, offering 5x60 programmes a more 

flexible and accessible version of the game. 

 

What next? 

 

Our hockey development workforce will be trained as tutors and piloting exemplar projects between 

now and July, in advance of the official launch of 4689 in September 2012.  Hockey Wales led 

competitions from September will be run using the new format, and will be phased in as regulations 

for all hockey activity from September 2013, starting with under 9s.  Competitions will be ability-

tiered, with every age group having the choice of two game formats, supporting the ability not age 

ethos.  By phasing in the changes, we will not be expecting children who are currently playing the 

7v7 mini hockey format to regress, but any new participants starting out will be introduced to 

4689. 

 

Want to get involved? 

 

From September, Hockey Wales can offer the 3 hour orientation workshop for between 12 and 24 

candidates at £40 per person, which includes school affiliation and exclusive access to the full online 

resource.  We will also be looking to offer reduced rates for block bookings where more than one 

person from each club or school attends.  Clubs will be encouraged to seek support through grant 

aid schemes such as Community Chest, and we are looking to Active Young People programmes to 

support this as an opportunity to offer specialist training and resources to their schools. 

 

For more information or to express your interest in getting involved, please contact: 

 

Caroline Spanton 

Head of Development 

Hockey Wales 

 

Tudalen 95



© Hockey Wales 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 96



© Hockey Wales 2012 

The Concept 

• Stage not age 

• Flexible 

• Progressive 

• Learning through play 

• Competition supported 

• Develops young leaders and umpires 

• Introduces goalkeeping simply and safely 

T
udalen 97



© Hockey Wales 2012 

The Game Formats 

4v4 – for beginners 
 

6v6 – for improvers (introducing 

umpires and coaches) 
 

8v8 – for more able  

(introducing midfielders) 
 

9v9 – for regular players 

(introducing GK) 

T
udalen 98



© Hockey Wales 2012 

The Design 
• Photos - international role  

models demonstrate the skills 

• “Top Trumps” – idolising our 
international athletes 

• Videos - junior club players 
demonstrate the activities  

• Colour coded cards 

• Compliments Dragon Sport  
and Play to Learn 

• Easy to navigate password  
protected website 

 
 

T
udalen 99



T
udalen 100



 

T
udalen 101



© Hockey Wales 2012 

The Resource 

• Bilingual 

• Interactive 

• Activity cards 

• Skills cards 

• Coaching cards 

• Umpiring cards 

• Playing the game cards 

 

T
udalen 102



T
udalen 103



© Hockey Wales 2012 

The Impact 

• Orientation course for teachers, 

coaches and young leaders 

• Resource can be used by children 

• More young coaches and umpires 

• Uniform delivery of hockey 

• Easier transition between primary 

and secondary, school and club 

 

T
udalen 104



© Hockey Wales 2012 

Coming Soon… 

• Rewards scheme

– Star chart 

– Skills passport 

– Stick stickers 

• Skills videos 

• Competition toolkit 

T
udalen 105



© Hockey Wales 2012 

T
udalen 106



© Hockey Wales 2012 

Get Involved! 

4689@hockeywales.org.uk 

www.4689.org.uk 

@4689Hockey 

 

Or contact: 

Claire Bryant 

029-2033-4988 

T
udalen 107



Paper to Note 
 
National Assembly for Wales 
 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

Inquiry into participation levels in sport in Wales

Additional information from the Welsh Local Government Association 
following the meeting held on 27 June 2013 

First document : Strategic plan for Swim Wales which is now forming the 
fundamental structure behind all local authority swim pathways. 
 
Second document :The specific strategy for Swansea showing the links from 
the governing body pathway for swimming into its own delivery strategy. 
 
Third document : I referred in the meeting to the way in which local 
authorities are working together on a regional basis to share good practice, 
to collaborate and make improvements.  This document is the shared 
planning document for the South East Chief Culture and Leisure officers 
 
Fourth document : The detailed delivery plan and priorities’ for sport and 
physical activity for the South East area 
 
Fifth document : Swim report for Newport from learn to swim to excellence. 
 
Sixth document : Disability successes just for Newport. 
 
Seventh document : Sports participation rates for Swansea showing some 
remarkable improvements in swimming and other areas. 
 
The documents are typical of the way in which local authorities collaborate 
with national partners and between themselves regionally and nationally. 
 
This was not always the case and most of this work has happened over the 
last two years in a more formal environment. 
 
I could provide more examples but I think this is enough at this stage in 
response to the questions raised and evidence given. 
 
I apologise once again for the fact that data for 2012/2013 is not finalised 
but for swimming in particular we are awaiting the end of the summer term. 
We will have the data in the early autumn which I am sure will be of value to 
supplement the report at a later stage. 
 

 

 

 

CELG(4)-23-13 - Paper 9 Eitem 9b

Tudalen 108



Document 1 

SWIMMING PATHWAY  

1. WHAT ARE WE TRYING TO ACHIEVE? 

 

To deliver a pathway for swimming across Wales that gives everyone the opportunity to take part in the sport 

throughout their life. Providing opportunities including lean to swim, recreational swimming and a performance 

pathway to allow competitors to reach their potential.  

 

This will mean achievement of the following targets: 

 

· Every child in Wales can swim by the age of 11 by 2014 

· 6.5 million swims per annum across Wales by 2014 

· 100,000 registered aquatic members by 2020 

· Consistently maintain a minimum of 5% of Welsh swimmers selected for British Swimming’s World 

Class pathway on an annual basis 

· 7 Commonwealth medals in 2014, 2 Olympic and 8 Paralympic medals from Welsh swimmers in 2012 

 

2. WHY IS THIS SO IMPORTANT? 

 

Swimming is often the first sport that we experience and is a sport that you can actively participate in at all 

ages and abilities.  It’s a life skill which provides a vehicle to participation in other aquatic sports and its 

importance is acknowledged as part of the national curriculum in Wales.  

 

3. HOW ARE WE DOING? 

 

LEARN – Every child in Wales can swim by the age of 11 by 2014  

 

 
 

SOCIAL PARTICIPATION– 6.5 million swims per annum across Wales by 2014 

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

Jan-10 Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14

%
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 

Learn to Swim  

Tudalen 109



Document 1 

 
 

COMPETITIVE & SOCIAL PARTICIPATION – 100,000 registered aquatic members by 2020  

 

 
 

PERFORM – consistently maintain a minimum of 5% of Welsh swimmers selected for British Swimming’s World 

Class pathway on an annual basis 

 

 

0

1000000

2000000

3000000

4000000

5000000

6000000

7000000

Jan-10 Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14

N
o

 o
f 

sw
im

s 

 Total swims accross Wales 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

N
o

 o
f 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 

Year 

Registered Aquatic Members 

Tudalen 110



Document 1 

 
 

AB = Able bodied , EAD = Elite athletes with a disability 

 

EXCEL  - 7 Commonwealth medals in 2014, 2 Olympic and 8 Paralympic medals from Welsh swimmers in 2012 

 
 

4. STORY BEHIND THE GRAPHS 

 

LEARN – Every child in Wales can swim by the age of 11 by 2014 

 

· New data being collected, only one year of history available 

· Learn to Swim standards based on: 

     -Swim 25m in an efficient manner; 

      -Tread water or float for a minimum of 30 seconds to include full rotation to a                                                                

vertical or horizontal (face up) position; 

      - Submerge the body competently underwater and surface to face the assessor. 

· Varying range between local authorities, ranging from 37% to 94% (average 64%) 

 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

2
0

0
9

-1
0

2
0

1
0

-1
1

2
0

1
1

-1
2

2
0

1
2

-1
3

2
0

1
3

-1
4

2
0

1
4

-1
5

2
0

1
5

-1
6

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 

 % of Swimmers on British Pathway  

EAD

AB

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014

Commonwealth / Olympic / 

Paralympic Medals 

CW Games

Olympic

Paralympic

Tudalen 111



Document 1 

SOCIAL PARTICIPATION– 6.5 million swims per annum across Wales by 2014 

 

· This target it based on the current highest performing local authority and setting the target that every 

authority in Wales could aspire to being comparable with this 

· Number of swims declining, therefore target is extremely ambitious  

· Different approaches will be required to achieve target 

· Data doesn’t show trend over a long period of time. The peak in 08/09 could be an exception 

 

 

COMPETITIVE & SOCIAL PARTICIPATION – 100,000 registered aquatic members by 2020 

 

· Current membership figures are predominately based on competitive swimmers 

· The achievement of 100,000 members is based on increasing competitive swimmers to 20,000 and 

attracting a different type of membership to the swimming family – social adult membership, aquatic 

activities that maintain the interest of those that have no desire to be a competitive swimmer 

 

PERFORM – consistently maintain a minimum of 5% of Welsh swimmers selected for British Swimming’s World 

Class pathway 

 

· Target is being exceeded consistently 

· British Swimming control the number of swimmers on the World Class pathway and the number of 

swimmers vary over a four year period. For example, four years prior to a major event the number 

increases however this typically gets squeezed over the four year period. This does / will have an 

impact on the number of Welsh swimmers supported. The target set doesn’t account for this 

fluctuation and the NGB would prefer the consistent target so show a true reflection of whether swim 

wales are contributing to British level swimming. 

 

EXCEL  - 7 Commonwealth medals in 2014, 2 Olympic and 8 Paralympic medals from Welsh swimmers in 2012 

 

· Good increases over past ten years. Olympic medals are predominately Paralympic medals (able bodied 

Olympic medals consist of 1 in 2004 and 1 2008) 

· Targets are ambitious, particularly for AB swimming but achievable 

 

5. PARTNERS 

 

The following key partners are involved in the swimming pathway: 

 

LEARN – WAG, LA Education, LA Leisure, Swim Wales 

SOCIAL PARTICIPATION – LA leisure & education, Swim Wales 

COMPETITIVE & SOCIAL - LA leisure & education, Swim Wales, British Swimming other NGBs e.g. surfing, 

triathlon, lifesaving 

PERFORM – Swim Wales, British Swimming, LA leisure 

EXCEL - Swim Wales, British Swimming, LA leisure 

 

Specific roles and responsibilities have been identified for local authorities and NGB’s. An example of this is 

indicated below  with Swim Wales and Pembrokeshire Council : 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 112



Document 1 

LOCAL AUTHORITY (LA) National Governing Body 

(NGB) 

OTHER - CLUBS 

LEARN – Every child in Wales can swim by the age of 11 by 2014 

Deliver Learn to Swim programme Provide appropriate training  Talent ID – recruit swimmers 

Liaise with education Provide models and share 

good practice 

Interface with learn to swim to 

pick up swimmers 

Capture data and respond Publicity about aquatics  

Publicity, marketing Create next step 

opportunities 

 

Quality assure delivery Support clubs to work with 

LA’s/ leisure centres to 

enable further opportunities 

following learn to swim 

 

Pass swimmers on to other exit 

routes 

  

SOCIAL PARTICIPATION– 6.5 million swims per annum across Wales by 2014 

 

Provide varying opportunities Teacher / coach education Create exit routes 

Provide appropriate pool time Resource development 

where appropriate 

 

Implement opportunities Promotion and marketing of 

swimming / aquatics 

 

 Support mass participation 

events 

 

COMPETITIVE & SOCIAL PARTICIPATION – 100,000 registered aquatic members by 2020 

 

Facilitate appropriate pool time Offer appropriate 

competitive structure  

Implement structure for 

competitive and social aquatics 

Provide opportunities (particularly 

wider social participation) 

Support clubs to flourish Cater for demand 

Recruit and retain sufficient 

workforce 

Teacher / coach education Host club galas for less formal 

competition opportunities 

 Volunteer recruitment Recruit and retain sufficient 

volunteers 

 Link with other aquatic NGBs 

to support exit routes 

 

PERFORM – consistently maintain a minimum of 5% of Welsh swimmers selected for British Swimming’s 

World Class pathway on an annual basis 

 

Provide sufficient pool time Ensure swimmers receiving 

appropriate training, 

coaching, completion and 

support 

Provide quality training  

  Support transitions to 

performance centre as and when 

necessary 

 

   

EXCEL  - 7 Commonwealth medals in 2014, 2 Olympic and 8 Paralympic medals in 2012 

As above As above As above 
 

Tudalen 113



Document 1 

6. WHAT WORKS  

 

LEARN – Every Child in Wales can Swim by the age of 11 by 2014  

 

Ceredigion currently have 87% of children Learning to Swim by the age of 11yrs.  In restructuring their lessons, 

some of the key aspects have included: 

 

· delegating the money to the community trust run pools who employ the swimming teachers. The 

swimming teachers have all attended training and all teach to the ASA National Plan for Teaching 

Swimming. This has created consistency between school swimming lessons and the local authority run 

swimming lessons. All swimming teachers produce a record for each child that in the future will 

hopefully feature as part of the child’s transition information  

· establishing regular meetings with pool managers to create an annual plan for school swimming 

· offering schools swimming lessons based on the number of children in the school. Schools with 100 

pupils are offered one lesson a week for 30 weeks; schools with 200 pupils are offered 2 lessons a week 

for 39 weeks; schools with 300 pupils are offered 3 lessons a week for 39 weeks; and so on. 

· offering any spare capacity to secondary schools 

· creating partnerships so that schools can visit a pool site for a day and take part in swimming, dry-side 

PE activities and activities in other curriculum areas.   

 

 

SOCIAL PARTICIPATION– 6.5 million swims per annum across Wales by 2014  

 

· Wrexham County Borough Council records the highest number of recreational swims (2184 per 1000 

population). Learn to swim figures are also promising (75% of children met the standard) and they 

operate a performance club. This would suggest that the programming is effective therefore more 

information should be sought to identify success factors 

· Wrexham CBC have invested significant time and resource in marketing aquatic opportunities to 

particpants on learn to swim programmes, adults who have children in swimming lessons , via schools 

and via the county council website. 

· Over 80 hours of FSI is offered each week which is been planned across the county to ensure there are 

no duplications in provision 

· Significant time has been spent in ensuring that data is collected effectively and accurately across all 

programme delivery. 

· Specific family sessions have been introduced which allow 3 children under 8 to take part in sessions 

with one adult supervising. 

 

COMPETITIVE & SOCIAL PARTICIPATION – 100,000 registered aquatic members by 2020 

 

· Membership gains have taken place via Aqua passport – a tracking scheme for children attending 

swimming lessons 

· Significant opportunities to further develop this area – membership benefits, adult social participation, 

aquatic clubs, outlets to other sports 

 

PERFORM - consistently maintain a minimum of 5% of Welsh swimmers selected for British Swimming’s World 

Class pathway 

 

· 10 performance clubs which provides sufficient training time, equipment and coaching 

· Regional squad structure through to National Youth Squad and Senior Elite Squad and World Class 

pathway 

· Ever increasing qualifying standards to reach squads 

Tudalen 114



Document 1 

 

EXCEL - 7 Commonwealth medals in 2014, 2 Olympic and 8 Paralympic medals from Welsh swimmers in 2012 

 

· Intensive Training Centre in Swansea (recognised by British Swimming) 

· Elite Clubs – Cardiff & Swansea 

· Athlete support to elite swimmers e.g. physiology, nutrition, strength & conditioning, performance 

lifestyle 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 115



Document 2 

The Strategic Swimming Priorities and Pathways for Swansea 
 

Overview 
 
This document provides an initial strategic overview on key priority areas for 
the swimming pathway in Swansea. It covers high level priorities and requires 
consultation with key partners, deliverers and facility providers to provide a 
detailed action plan to ensure the priorities and aspirations can be delivered. 
 
Swansea is a coastal area with the main city situated on the sea front with the 
main area enclosed by the sea and the rivers Tawe and Loughor, with 
beaches ranging from the marina and Swansea Bay, those around Gower and 
the tidal estuary of the Bury inlet to the River Loughor. Swansea is also the 
home of the Wales National Pool and the offices of the Governing Body for 
the sport of Swimming. The City and County of Swansea Council has 
therefore designated swimming as a Division 1 sport. 
 
The main areas covered within this paper include pre school, school 
swimming, Learn to swim, Social swimming, Clubs, including various aquatics 
club, performance, workforce development, facilities and equipment and how 
the whole pathways interact with the Welsh Government’s Free Swimming 
Initiative. 
 
Pre School Swimming 
 
Strategic Priorities 

· Each Council and partner facility to offer pre school swimming 
opportunities 

· Pre School swimming to be included in the Free Junior Structured 
programme 

 
School Swimming 
 
Strategic Priorities 
 

· Minimum of 95% of all pupils to achieve National Curriculum Test 
(NCT) by end of year 6 (by July 2014) 

· All Primary Schools to buy into CCS Primary Phase Swimming SLA 

· Increase Year 4 participation in SLA to 60% of all pupils 

· Continuation of Primary Phase Swimming to Years 7 and 8 through 
free swimming for Comprehensive Schools at this age group. 

· Targeted Free Structured Swimming Lessons during holiday periods 
for those pupils up to year 8 recognised by the Council’s Swimming 
Co-ordinator requiring additional swimming lesson support. 

· Feedback annually to schools, Education Department and Sport Wales 
on participation and NCT levels 

· All schools to receive free annual water safety awareness training 

· Expand Schools Swimming SLA to Morriston Leisure Centre 

· All SLA pools to conduct ‘non competitive’ swimming competitions 

Tudalen 116



Document 2 

Learn to Swim Programme 
 
Strategic Priorities 
 

· Increase Learn to Swim programme at CCS venues from 1300 – 2000 
by reviewing pool programmes and expanding pathways from School 
swimming to Learn to Swim 

· Increasing WNPS Learn to swim from 800 to 1200 

· Introduce Learn to Swim at the LC 

· Ensure Swansea Sharks, Poseidon and any other local Learn to Swim 
programmes follow the ASA National Plan for Swimming Teaching if 
using Council owned Swimming Facilities including School sites. 

· Expand to 1 to 1 Learn to Swim programme 

· Include the Long Term Athlete Development Timeframe within the 
Learn to swim Programme 

· Expand the opportunities for Swimming Clubs to attend the Learn to 
Swim programme for pathway opportunities and talent ID. 

· Expand the opportunities for alternate aquatic opportunities to follow on 
from the Learn to Swim Programme including Rookies, Bronze 
Medallion, Canoeing, Surfing, Water Polo. 

· Introduce the Learn to Swim free swimming promotion to all CCS 
active learn to swim participants at all times at CCS run pools and 
expand to partner pools. 

 
Social Swimming 
 
Strategic Priorities 
 

· Aspire for Swansea to be within the top quartile for paid and free 
swimming in Wales per head of population 

· Ensure there is a wide and varied programme of opportunities across 
the City facilities 

· Maximise the Free Swimming Programme through continuation of the 
60+ free swimming and introduce structured 60+ FSI at WNPS 

· Continue the Xmas free swimming across CCS venues and encourage 
partner participation in the scheme 

· Expand the weekend free swimming and include greater opportunities 
for dry side programmes to be linked to the scheme 

· Encourage parents to participate in the Learn to Swim free swim 
opportunities by discounting parents with participating children 

· Review the Active Swansea membership to monitor the uptake on use 
of the swimming pools as part of the packages. 

 
Club Opportunities 
 
Strategic Priorities 
 

· Help increase Swim Swansea and Penyrheol membership. 

Tudalen 117



Document 2 

· Review pool space agreement with Swim Swansea until numbers 
increase significantly 

· Offer Penyrheol Club pool space agreement until Swim Swansea 
Membership reaches optimum levels 

· Review Swim Swansea Development and Performance structures 

· Encourage Swansea Sharks to become part of the Swim Swansea 
‘Umbrella’ 

· Further develop links to all aquatic clubs and providers as pathways 
from the Learn to Swim programmes 

· Create a new Aquatics Pathways Co-ordinator (part time) to work 
alongside CCS Swim Co-ordinator, partner key staff, swimming clubs 
and other aquatic providers to forge clear pathway opportunities for all 
swimmers 

· Develop CCS non competitive swimming clubs at CCS venues and 
WNPS as interim club environment to recognised swimming clubs 

· Review CCS management of Swim Swansea 

· Continue the support of the disabled club at Pentrehafod through free 
pool space 

· Expand the licensing of surf schools and all outdoor water borne 
opportunities 

· To assist the new Watersport Centre of Excellence (Swansea Bay 360) 
and include in any aquatics pathway from learn to swim and club 
swimmers 

 
Facilities and Equipment 
 
Strategic Priorities 
 

· Ensure all facilities to be of an appropriate condition  

· Ensure all facilities have suitable and appropriate equipment to deliver 
the programmes 

· Review the asset management / condition surveys of all CCS 
swimming pools to identify potential repairs and future capital spend 

· Ensure CCS Education project QEd takes into account the community 
demand for swimming across the city to include the potential demand 
at school swimming pools 

  
Workforce Development 
 
Strategic Priorities 
 

· Increase the opportunities for work on the swimming sector in Swansea 
from Lifeguarding to instructor and coach opportunities through 
providing up-skilling opportunities. 

· Ensure that all coaches and instructors are suitably qualified 

· Ensure that all lifeguards of Swansea Swimming Pools are qualified to 
the CCS standard and where appropriate, SLA’s with partner 
organisations are in place with CCS Water Safety Team 

· Up-skilling of Level 1 instructors to Level 2 

Tudalen 118



Document 2 

· To run a series of appropriate workshops for instructors and club 
coaches and volunteers 

· To increase the base of L1 swimming instructors 
 
Performance Swimming 
 
Strategic Priorities 
 
(to be reviewed) 
 

·  
 
Headline Targets 

Tudalen 119



Document 3 

Operational RBA Card – Gwent  

 

Area for Improvement:  
 

Aim: To ensure all children with the SE Region have the opportunity to engage and develop in aquatic activities. 
 

 

 

Service Description  
 

- Swimming & Aquatic Development Officers from the following 5 local authorities of Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and Torfaen. 
- Swim Wales Regional Development Officer (Hanna Guise) 
- Sport Wales Senior Officer (Richard Dando) 
- PESS (JE, JM & AHJ) 

 

 

Priorities for Development   
 

1. School Swimming – Data collection and other agreed areas 
2. Learn to Swim (after school) – consistency in delivery/structure, no’s in lessons, capacity & income, pathways 
3. Social Participation – Free Swims for Young People and older Persons 
4. Governing Body Membership – Broken down into relevant categories including A, B & C 
5. Workforce development – agreed SE Wales plan for employees, clubs, volunteers. 

 

 

Headline Performance Measure  
 

1. No. of children achieving National Curriculum Standard for years 3, 4, 5 and 6 and current standard of children attending programmes; realistic targets for LA’s 

(see attached information.) Agreed and consistent structure delivery and evaluation. 
 

2. Learn to Swim –  number of LA’s striving towards Swim Wales Passport Scheme,  capacity within lessons (maximising pool space/resources and income) and 

numbers of children attending swim lessons, inclusion and provision for disabled children/adults 
 

3. Social Participation – as per WAG Free Swims for Young People and Over 60’s. Analysing trends and targets. 
 

4. Swim Wales membership – number of competitive and non-competitive members e.g. through Aqua Passport scheme per LA/competitive clubs and realistic targets 

for forthcoming years. Highlighting numbers of learn to swim and comparison of non-competitive and competitive in some clubs/regions. 
 

5. Workforce Development – number of Courses and Workshops within SE Wales; no. of participants who attend these courses with agreed targets for region and 

each authority. 

T
udalen 120



Document 3 

Operational RBA Card – Gwent  

 

 

 

 

 

Data Development  
 
Please see below data that was not available at start of research 

 
1. More accurate and specific Schools Swim Data needed such as National Curriculum standard for years 3, 4 and 5. (Currently only Year 6 collected until 
now) Structure within lessons, delivery, assessment of the children, awards etc for 11/12, 12/13 and targets for 13/14 – wide range of inconsistency currently 
practised. 
 
2. Accurate Swim Lesson data e.g. numbers/capacity currently in lessons for 11/12, 12/13 and target setting for 13/14. 
 
3. FSI from data unit information (Lack of Historical Data and issues with data collection & new website) – Informed Data Unit. 
 
4. WASA Members broken down into various categories e.g. competitive and non-competitive, gender and age groups. 
 
5. Workforce development – number of participants in 10/11, 11/12 and 12/13 and targets for 13/14 (Funding Issues highlighted.) 

 

 

How Much?   How Well?  
 
Please refer to data on separate spread sheet 
 

  
Please refer to data on separate spread sheet 
 

 

Is anyone better off?  
 
By looking at the data collected, trends analysed and from speaking to various partners involved, the following can be stated: 
 

· Aquatic Clubs have witnessed a slight increase in members both competitive and non-competitive 
 

· School children within SE Region are achieving National Curriculum at an increasing rate** 
 

· An increasing number of Older People within the SE Region are accessing Free Swim  
 
 
 

T
udalen 121



Document 3 

Operational RBA Card – Gwent  

 

 

 

 

Story (last 3 years) behind the Baseline   Partners who can help us do better 
 
School Swim Programme – from data received and meetings with all relevant partners all 5 local 
authorities are showing improvements with regards to the % of children achieving the National 
Curriculum Award in Year 6. However, there are a number of inconsistencies including structure of 
lessons, assessment (criteria and who assesses), awards and also clarity of data given i.e. % of how 
many children. In addition, the swimming ability of children attending their relevant school swim 
programme has dropped dramatically within the last 2 years.  
 
With regards to Learn to Swim again all authorities have witnessed an increase in the number of 
children attending swim lessons, with some LA’s setting and achieving high targets and all currently 
follow the same framework (ASA NPTS) which aids consistency across the SE Region.  
 
It has become apparent that for all 5 Local Authorities to acquire & deliver the new Swim Wales 
Aqua Passport will be even more challenging than first thought. There are potential issues with 
system administration, collation & sharing of data and access to Aqua Passport interactive website. 
There have also been concerns raised with regards to the criteria being implemented. 
 
Social Participation – it is apparent that all local authorities have experienced a dramatic drop in 
the number of Young People (16 years & Under) participating in the Free Swim Initiative, although 
some have witnessed an increase during the past 12 months. Research will be need to be carried 
out (by all relevant partners) to determine why there has been such a decrease, which is also a 
national issue. In stark contrast all 5 authorities, have witnessed an increase in Older Person’s 
participation, which may be a result of an increasing age of population (people living longer), repeat 
visits etc. This is not what the initial aim of FSI was when it was first launched. 
 
Swim Wales Membership - Again there is positive news here, with all 5 LA’s showing a steady 
increase in Swim Wales members. This demonstrates that pathways from Learn to Swim are in 
place, albeit some have more established programmes than others. It must also be noted than some 
clubs have a high percentage of category A Swimmers (under 10’s) as a result of delivering their 
own Learn to Swim programmes, which of course, causes conflict with the relevant local authority’s 
own programme. 
 
Workforce Development – Through the data collected, most LA’s have seen an increase in 
workforce development within Aquatics, however there are some that have not invested at all. Over 

  
Swim Wales, Sport Wales, PESS, Local 
Education Partners, Schools, Parents, and 
ourselves. 

T
udalen 122



Document 3 

Operational RBA Card – Gwent  

 

the past 3-4 years, all local authorities (including SE Region) have become dependent upon external 
funding (Improvement Fund & LAPA) to deliver appropriate workforce development. It is also 
apparent that some LA’s have been more proactive than others in supporting staff, volunteers and 
clubs alike.  
 
However, these funding avenues are potentially no longer available and therefore at least two 
authorities will be unable to deliver any coach education within the region for this year. This will 
therefore impact upon current staff/volunteers and quality of provision and the recruitment & up 
skilling of new coaches/teachers. LA’s are encouraged to utilise Free Swim funding but will this will 
impact upon free swim access to the public and will undoubtedly impact upon performance indicators 
for Free Swim participation.  
 
As you will see from the above, there are a number of examples of best practise and also many 
examples of poor and also inconsistencies within the SE Region. Also, through consultation and 
collecting of data, it has become apparent in some LA’s that aquatic plans & targets are not 
requested and therefore, this will have a significant and negative impact upon the long term solutions 
and aquatic development within the Region. In addition, it is apparent that all of the 5 LA’s have 

a different focus i.e. development, income generation etc. – there needs to be a common 
theme and focus here. 
 
It is also apparent that for a successful Aquatic Programme to be delivered and to develop, a 
Swimming/Aquatic Development Officer is needed in post, who in addition has full responsibility for 
total aquatics in their authority and has the relevant support mechanisms in place. 

 

What do we propose to do to improve performance?  

Action  Update  
 

1. BS to meet relevant partners to consult over CORL Actions and proposed plan 
 

2. BS to meet with all relevant partners (as listed above) to agree on action plan and implement 
changes and improvements as agreed. 
 

3. School Swim Programme – Nat Cur for all years relevant, consistent framework, awards etc. 
 
4. Learn to Swim – all LA’s aiming to achieve consistency through acquiring of Aqua Passport and 

agreeing new capacity targets, pathways to other aquatic options 
 

5. Social participation – as per LA’s scorecard; all LA’s offering Free Swim to Armed Services and/or 
VETS, evaluating current Free Swim allocation and participation. 

 
BS has met with all relevant partners/officers 
including fellow SDO’s (x4), Swim Wales, Sport 
Wales and PESS. 

T
udalen 123



Document 3 

Operational RBA Card – Gwent  

 

 
6. WASA Membership – Address conflict with Learn to Swim in relevant authorities; implement 

increase in Swim Wales Membership through improved competitive pathways. 
 

7. Workforce Development – SE Wales wide provision to employees, volunteers and aquatic club 
members; accessing of funding to help deliver comprehensive coach education in SE Wales Region 

 

T
udalen 124



Document 4 

Population RBA Scorecard – Gwent  
 

All people in Gwent lead active lifestyles    
 

 

What would success look like?   How are we going to achieve this outcome?  

- Increased participation levels in sport and physical activity 
in adults  

- Increased participation levels in sport and physical activity 
in children and young people  

 

 

 - The Gwent Sub Group for Sport and Leisure to demonstrate 
impact against priorities agreed.   

- To instil accountability for collaborative improvement across the 
local authorities  

- To meet quarterly to measure progress and identify 
improvement areas.    

 

 

How are we doing so far?       

Indicator   
2009 /10 2010 /11 2011/12 

Target 
2012/13 

% of young people attending 30 or more sessions per academic 
year  
(Source: Sport Wales 5x60 MI Report)  

Caerphilly 3.61% 5.27% 6.75%  

Blaenau Gwent  2.7% 4.6% 6.31%  

Torfaen  1.92% 5.46% 2.87%  

Monmouthshire 6.14% 1.21% 8.24%  

Newport 1.57% 1.49% 3.41%  

WALES  4.29% 5.16% 6.53%  

% of 7-11 year olds “Hooked on Sport” 
(Source: School Sport Survey, Sport Wales)  

Caerphilly N/A N/A 26%  

Blaenau Gwent  N/A N/A 27%  

Torfaen  N/A N/A N/A  

Monmouthshire N/A N/A N/A  

Newport N/A N/A N/A  

WALES  N/A N/A 28%  

% of pupils achieving Level 5 in the Key Stage 3 Non Core 
Teacher Assessment Results in Physical Education   
(Source: National Office of Statistics)  
 

Caerphilly 69.6% 77.7% 81.2%  

Blaenau Gwent  62.7% 73.1% 72.9%  

Torfaen  64.6% 71.9% 78.4%  

Monmouthshire 82.2% 84.4% 85.9%  

Newport 78% 80% 83.1%  

WALES  73.9% 78% 82.2%  

% of children age 11 years achieving swimming 25 metres 
(Source: Local Government Data Unit)  

Caerphilly 53% 27% 61% (T) 68% (T) 

Blaenau Gwent  55% 80% 70% 75% (T) 

Torfaen  86% 90% 80% No data 

Monmouthshire 73% 63% 75%  78% (T) 

Newport 49% 63% 65% 68% (T) 

T
udalen 125



Document 4 

Population RBA Scorecard – Gwent  

WALES  67% 69%   

The number of visits to a local authority sport and leisure centres 
during the year where the visitor will be participating in physical 
activity, per 1000 population 
(Source: Wales Data Unit)  

Caerphilly N/A 6456.88 6634.77  

Blaenau Gwent  N/A 12350.79 13716.61  

Torfaen  N/A 7478.74 7624.62  

Monmouthshire N/A 4873.65 5962.37  

Newport N/A 7639.19 7408.32  

WALES  N/A 8523.52 8760.86  

% of customers reporting good or excellent for Leisure Centre 
facilities and provision  
(Source: Local Authorities)  

Caerphilly     

Blaenau Gwent      

Torfaen      

Monmouthshire     

Newport     

WALES      

Story Behind Performance  
 

· There is a general upward trajectory in LA participation rates in the 5x60 programme from 2009/10 to 2011/12, however Newport, Torfaen 
and Blaenau Gwent are positioned below the national average of 6.53%. Monmouthshire have the highest participation rate at 8.24%. 

 

· With regards to “hooked on sport for life” (3 times or more per week) Blaenau Gwent and Caerphilly are the only LA’s in the regional with a 
full Sport Wales survey and have 27% and 26% of 7-11 year olds participating three times or more a week, just below the national 
average of 28%. It’s critical in 2012/13 that all Gwent LAs strive to obtain a greater Sport Wales survey sample, in order to improve 
benchmarking across the region. 

 

· There is an overall upward trajectory across the region with pupils achieving Level 5 at Key Stage 3 via non-core teacher assessments, 
however both Blaenau Gwent (72.9%) and Torfaen (78.4%) are performing below the national average of 82.2% for the academic session 
2011/12.  

 

· The indicator for the % of children age 11 years achieving swimming 25 metres fluctuates across the region. Blaenau Gwent, Torfaen and 
Newport mirrored the Wales trend of showing an upward trajectory, however performance in Caerphilly (>26%) and Monmouthshire 
(>10%) has significantly decreased.   
 

 

 

 

 

Data Development Agenda 

T
udalen 126



Document 4 

Population RBA Scorecard – Gwent  
 

 

 

What we propose to do to improve performance  Documents that will support the implementation of this outcome   
 

- Agree regional priorities at Gwent sub group level that will 
lead to increased participation and quality provision (and 
gain approval from Gwent Chief Officer Group). 

 
- Identify lead people within the sub group lead on each 

priority and report back on progress on impact quarterly to 
the sub group. 

 
- Chair of sub group to report on progress 6 monthly (using 

RBA format) to Gwent Chief Officer Group. 
 

- Chair of sub group to report progress 6 monthly (using RBA 
format) to CORL group. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  
- Creating an Active Wales 
-  A vision for Sport in Wales  
- Sport Wales Coaching Strategy  
- Local Authority Partnership Agreements  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

T
udalen 127



Document 5 

Newport – ‘A technology city infused with sporting and cultural excellence’. 
 
Swimming and Aquatic Development 
 
The report outlines some key successes for Swimming and Aquatic Development in 
Newport. 
 
Swimming has been identified as a priority sport in the city. It is also a priority in 
Wales where a key aspiration agreed by each local authority is to ensure that each 
child can swim by age 11. Swimming in a priority sport for Welsh Government in 
encouraging people of all ages to be physical activity and improve their health. This 
is supported by WG’s funding for Free Swimming for children and also Older People. 
 
The delivery of swimming and other aquatic sports has been transformed in Newport 
over the past 3 years and positive outcomes are now being evidenced. 
 
Newport City Council developed and implemented an Integrated Swim Programme 
which has now been in place for 2 ½ years. The programme is now seen by Swim 
Wales and Sport Wales as an example of best practise with regards to the structure, 
pathway and quality of the programmes. Many other clubs/local authorities are now 
looking to replicate this model, which has seen the fastest growth in membership for 
a competitive club. 
 
Swim Lesson Programme 
 
The swim lesson programme currently has 2,000 children attending weekly swim 
lessons at the council’s 3 swimming pools (NISV, Newport Centre and the Active 
Living Centre). Two of the pools are achieving 90% capacity with the other achieving 
88% on a regular basis. This shows evidence that the swim lesson programme is 
continually delivering a quality of standard of teaching and customers are willing to 
return each term. 
 
Competitive Swim Programme 
 
The swimming & water polo club currently has 240 members paying direct debits 
each month. This shows a 50 % increase from when the Integrated Swim 
Programme was implemented when membership stood at 160. 
 
Swim Development in partnership with the club and coaches, have recently 
completed a review of the competitive programme and have now introduced two new 
squads to a) accommodate the growing demand in the swimming club b) improve 
training within the relevant swim squads. 
 

All the remaining swim squads are doing extremely well, with three of the four 
squads currently at 100% capacity. This is due to the excellent coaching in the 
lower squads as well as the club attracting swimmers from the region as a whole. If 
all squads were full within the club (including water polo) then the club would have a 
membership of 300, which would make the club the third biggest in Wales. 
 
Arena National Swimming league 
The National Swimming League is the premier team swimming competition in Great 
Britain. The City of Newport has been competing in the Premier division for the 5th 
consecutive year. This year, our swimmers put in a great team performance over the 
three rounds to equal our highest ever league finish of 11th. This was an excellent 

Tudalen 128



Document 5 

performance, especially when considering that the City of Newport is now one of only 
a few single clubs competing at this level, with many clubs choosing to merge to form 
county/regional squads. 
  
ASA British National Championships 
The City of Newport will have its highest ever number of swimmers competing at the 
prestigious ASA British National Championships in 2013. The championships are the 
benchmark for competitive swimming in Great Britain and therefore the qualifying 
standards are extremely difficult to achieve (only the top 20-30 swimmers in Britain 
qualify in each event). The City of Newport will be sending a team of at least 14 
swimmers which includes Cameron Brown, Matthew Jayne, Matthew Eke, Alex 
Griffiths, Tristan Cuer, Connor Acland, Jonathan Eke, Sam Hynd, Emily Peacock, 
Emily Whiting, Elizabeth Smith, Louise Bell, Erin Bryce and Cerys Coley. This may 
further increase as there is still one opportunity to qualify. 
 
Welsh National Championships 
Performances at the Welsh National Championships in December were absolutely 
outstanding from City of Newport swimmers. Almost all who took part recorded new 
personal best performances and the squad of swimmers won an incredible combined 
total of 28 medals. This is a remarkable result when considering that our swimmers 
were competing against all of the most talented swimmers from across Wales. The 
most pleasing aspect was the number of different swimmers from Newport winning 
medals at this level, therefore showing a real increase in the strength in depth of 
national levels swimmers across our performance squads. 
 
International Honours and records 
During the last year many City of Newport swimmers have received many 
international honours.  
 
The club had its highest ever number of swimmers selected onto Swim Wales 
regional training squads with a total of 13 swimmers participating in the stroke 
specific training camps. 
 
Cameron Brown, Jonathan Eke, and Alex Griffiths represented Wales at the UK 
Schools games in London, where both Cameron and Alex were part of the Welsh 
team that broke the national junior record in the 4x200m and 4x100m freestyle 
relays. This added to Cameron’s individual national junior 200m freestyle record set 
at the nationals. 
 
Cameron Brown was selected as part of the Welsh Youth team, which competed at 
the recent Luxembourg International meet, where he picked up a gold, silver and 
bronze medal. He was also selected as part of the Welsh senior team (as the 
youngest male swimmer) to compete in the Celtic Tri-nations held in May, in which 
the Welsh team were victorious. 
 
Sam Hynd and Jonathan Eke have both been selected as part of the British Disability 
squad for 2013. Jonathan was selected for the World class podium potential squad, 
while Sam was selected to World Class Podium Squad.  
 
In April Sam Hynd qualified to represent Great Britain at the World disability 
championships in Montreal, Canada, in August 2013. 
 
City of Newport Head Coach Ross Nicholas was selected as Welsh National Team 
Coach for the Celtic Tri-nations and also Welsh Youth Head coach for the 
Luxembourg International meet. 

Tudalen 129



Document 5 

 
Assistant Coach James Goodwin was selected as coach for the Swim Wales 
Regional skills squads. 
 
Water Polo 
 
The water polo section has also seen a dramatic increase in the number of children 
playing water polo each week, with 35 children in the Junior Squad. 
 
The club is now part of the Welsh Water Polo League, which has three age groups 
for children born in 95, 97 and 99. In addition, children born in 2000 or younger also 
play in friendly matches so that they can practise what they are coached and also 
retain their membership. 
 
All our junior squads are very young in comparison to the other teams, with many 
children playing out of age. However, results have shown that the players have 
improved in performance, stamina and skills.  
 
We currently have 8 players within the Welsh Junior Squads and have represented 
their country at various competitions. This is reward for all their hard work over the 
past 2 years and also the quality of the coaches who take the sessions. In addition 
two thirds of the club now attend monthly Welsh Water Polo clinics, with about ½ the 
club players attending specific regional training on a weekly basis at NISV. 
 
The Senior squad has also witnessed an increase over the past 12 months. These 
players train on a weekly basis at NISV with older members of the junior squad. The 
club have also now joined the Bristol & West League for the 1st time in 15 years, 
which shows the strength in depth within the club. One of the players (James Farror) 
is currently goalie for the Welsh Senior team who competed at the recent Tri Nations 
and is also training with the Commonwealth Squad. 
 
The Newport International Sports Village, is seen as a vital training base for both 
junior and senior water polo, with the Welsh training Clinics now using the pool every 
Friday evening, and the Welsh Senior Squad (Men’s and Women’s) using the pool 
for Commonwealth training Camps. This is a reflection of the fantastic facilities at the 
Sports Village. 
 
Finally two of the coaches within the club have been recognised and are now 
coaching within the Welsh Squads and Welsh clinics, these being Brian Jones and 
Barrie Swift. 

 
 

Tudalen 130



Document 6 

Disability Sport Successes Last 6 months 

 

· One of the first authorities in Wales to achieve the Disability Sport Wales 

insport ribbon award. The award recognises Newport City Council’s 

commitment to delivering an inclusive sport and leisure programme. 

 

· There has been a 39% increase in participation in disability sport activities in 

Newport in 2012 compared to the same period in 2011.   

 

· Partnership with day services extended providing disabled adults with a 

programme of leisure centre based activities. Currently the programme 

provides 10 sessions a week to an average of 85 disabled adults. 

 

· 5 x 60 programme expanded into Maes Ebbw Special School, 1 sports 

session provided each lunchtime 5 days a week. 

 

· New disability football session established and linked to Caerleon Junior 

Football Club, and the Welsh Football Trust festival programme.  

 

· 2 riders from the Newport based Para Cycling session selected onto GB 

development squads. 

Tudalen 131



Document 7 

Sports Participation Rates – City and County of Swansea trends 2011-2013 
 

The trends identified here generally refer to 2011-12 (pre Olympics) and 2012-13. However, where possible figures 
showing a longer trend period are used e.g. 2008-09 to 2012-13. 
 

Sport / Performance Indicator Pre Olympic 
Year 

 

2011-12 
Result 

Olympic 
Year 

 

2012-13 
Result 

Current 
Trend 

Factors supporting increasing participation 

The number of people (adults & 
Juniors) enrolled on swimming 
lessons 
 
CCS Leisure Centre Learn to Swim 
Programme (Lessons & Courses, FSI 
Lessons) 

12,287 13,527 + 10% § Free swim lessons have been a catalyst for 
increasing the numbers attending as they are 
initially identified through the school programme 
as needing additional tuition which is given as FSI 
structured sessions and then encourages 
participants to join the regular programme. 

 
§ The swimming tuition has been highlighted by the 

ASA as being of a high standard and has a high 
success rate – success breeds success  

% of Children who can swim at age 11 
(8-11) 
 
Learn to swim programme – schools. 
 
 

55% 
(2008-09) 

93% 
(projected 
results due 
in Jul 13) 

+ 38% since 
08-09 

§ Additional teacher at each site was implemented 
to support school swim lessons as identified this 
would deliver significant improvement 

 
§ Efforts to concentrate on pupils who have missed 

lessons/terms concentrating on key target areas, 
also providing transport (with Comm 1st). 

Total Swimming Usage – CCS & 
Partner Sites 

790,965 884,567 +12% § + 6k increase at CCS sites 
§ + 85k at LC Water Park 
§ WNP on par with previous year. 

National Strategic Indicator - LCS/002 - 
The number of visits to local authority 
sport and leisure centres during the 
year where the visitor will be participating 
in physical activity, per 1,000 population 

7,805 
(2008-09) 

8,038 + 3% since 
08-09 

§ General upward trend 
§ CCS LC fitness programme expanded 

successfully 
§ Additional venues added into measure such as 

TS365 and sport based community centres. 

T
udalen 132



Document 7 

Total Sports Usage across the CTS&L 
Department 
(LC’s, Sports Dev, Pitch, partners usage 
etc.) 
 

2,294,400 2,353,425 + 2.6% § General upward trend 
§ Additional venue – TS365 added 
§ Increased Swim participation 
§ Increased schools gymnastics programme (at 

Penyrheol LC) 

Total Physical Activity Usage  
(includes all Sports & Physical Activity 
usage) 
 

3,113,863 
(2009-10) 

3,384,731 + 9% since 
09-10 

§ General upward trend 
§ Additional venue – TS365 added 
§ Increased Swim participation 
§ Significant increase in gym and fitness class 

usage 

Community Sports Participation  105,095 124,860 +21% 
increase 

§ Focus Sports – With partners, selected sports that 
can make the biggest difference to participation 
and performance based on –Capacity/demand, 
local infrastructure, equity and legacy. Including 
Football, Rugby, Hockey, Netball, Sailing, Rowing, 
Basketball, Gymnastics. 

 
§ LAPA – In Swansea the LAPA directly supports 

the focus sports and other identified sports in 
partnership with the NGB or hub clubs. 

 
§ Be Part of it – Marketing campaign based on 

Olympic/Paralympic legacy including events, press 
releases, club sport profile. 

 
§ Community Chest – Raising the profile of the 

funding mechanism to take advantage of almost 
double the amount of funds available to Swansea 
clubs on previous years (130k). 

Disability Sport Usage 16,295 21,639 + 33% § Included in “Be Part of it” Olympic/Paralympic 
legacy campaign. 

 
§ Focus sports programme. 
 
§ Achievement of Ribbon award accreditation and 

related action planning. 

T
udalen 133



Document 7 

 

AYP Girls Sporting Participation 
(5x60) 

42.66% 
(2010-11) 

55% 
(2011-12) 

+ 12.34% § 12-13 result due Aug 13 
§ During 11-12 4,500 sessions delivered across 

5x60 programme offering the opportunity to try 38 
different sports. 

§ Established top 5 sports attract more girls 
participation – Street Dance, Basketball, 
Badminton, Multi-skills, Girls Football. 

§ An increase in female young ambassadors as role 
models has had a positive impact on female 
participation. 

 
 

 

T
udalen 134



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
 
CELG(4)-23-13 : Paper 10 : Paper to Note 
 

Email dated 10 July 2013 

 

Dear Christine Chapman AM,  

 

Football Association of Wales and its decision on the future of Barry and Llanelli football 

clubs 

  

I am writing to you as Chair of the Communities, Equalities and Local Government to ask 

that your committee carries out a committee enquiry in to the governance of football in 

Wales, as a follow on from the committee's previous report into the Welsh Premier League 

in Wales, which touches on FAW governance and its general relationship with Welsh Clubs. 

  

This inquiry would be timely as you will be aware of disquiet within football regarding the 

governance arrangements and the transparency of the organisation's decision-making 

process.  

  

This has come to the fore recently following the decision of the FAW to deny Welsh 

League entry to Llanelli AFC and Barry Town United. 

  

Officers of the Football Association of Wales (FAW) called a Special Meeting of the Council 

of the FAW, today, Tuesday 9th July 2013 to consider new information in relation to a 

previous decision of Council, made at their last meeting on the 13th June concerning Barry 

Town United and Llanelli Football Club.  

  

Of the twenty-nine Council Members present, fifteen voted against and fourteen voted for 

Standing Orders to be suspended.  The new information could not be heard and the 

previous decision of Council, relating to the two clubs, as agreed at the meeting of Council 

on the 13th June 2013, stands. 

  

You will appreciate that as Shadow Sports Minister for Plaid Cymru, I have been contacted 

by many people who are deeply unhappy that the consideration of new information was 

voted down at said meeting by the Councillors. Many people have contacted me to say that 

they believe that the unwieldy structures of the FAW is not workable, and that now is the 

time for change. 

  

I trust that you will raise this in committee, and that you will have a discussion on the clear 

merit of such an investigation by the committee in the National Assembly which has 

responsibility for sport. 

 

I look forward to your response, 

  

Kind Regards, 

  

Eitem 9c

Tudalen 135



Bethan Jenkins AM 

 

 

Tudalen 136



 

 

 

CELG(4)-23-13 - Paper 11Eitem 9d

Tudalen 137


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i™r rhwystrau i adeiladu cartrefi yng Nghymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth 4
	Papur 1 - Y Sefydliad Cynllunio Trefol Brenhinol yng Nghymru
	Papur 2 - Sefydliad Brenhinol y Syrfewyr Siartredig

	3 Ymchwiliad i™r rhwystrau i adeiladu cartrefi yng Nghymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth 5
	4 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar gyfer darpariaethau yn ymwneud ag adennill meddiant tai annedd
	Briff Cyfreithiol
	Papur 4 - LCM

	6 Dyfodol cydraddoldeb a hawliau dynol yng Nghymru Œ trafod yr adroddiad drafft
	7 Ymchwiliad i lefelau cyfranogiad mewn chwaraeon - trafod y prif faterion
	8 Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor
	9a Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Chwaraeon Cymru yn dilyn cyfarfod 19 Mehefin
	9b Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru yn dilyn y cyfarfod ar 27 Mehefin
	9c Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Bethan Jenkins AC
	9d Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Ann Jones AC

